
Tuesday, June 30, 2020

NOTICE: Public attendance at public meetings is restricted due to COVID-19 concerns.  To 

access and participate in the meetings remotely, please call 641-939-8108 for meeting 
information.  

Call To Order
Courthouse Large Conference Room

Pledge Of Allegiance

Approval Of Agenda

Approval Of Minutes

06-24-2020 MINUTES.PDF

Approval Of Claims For Payment

VENDOR PUBLICATION REPORT 6-30-20.PDF

Utility Permits & Secondary Roads Department

FY 2021 Fuel

Pickup Quotes

Re-Appropriations Resolution FY 2020

RE-APPROPRIATIONS AMENDMENT RESOLUTION.PDF

Proposals For Upgrades To Elevators At Courthouse And County Office Building

HARDIN COUNTY 2020 CODE UPGRADES.PDF

Central Iowa Juvenile Detention Center Audit

FY 19 CIJDC AUDIT FINAL.PDF

Tax Abatements: Ellsworth Neighborhood Investment Group

Recommendation To The DNR On Animal Feeding Operation Construction Permit 
Application: 110 Pork Shop Site, Section 6, Alden Township 

110 PORK SHOP APPLICATION.PDF

Application For Fireworks Permit – Union Betterment

FIREWORKS PERMIT APPLICATION - UNION BETTERMENT.PDF

Application For Fireworks Permit – Larry Balvanz

Change Of Status – Auditor ’s Office

Changes Of Status – Secondary Roads

CHANGES OF STATUS - SECONDARY ROADS.PDF

COVID-19 Update

Public Comments

Other Business

Adjournment/Recess

Drainage
VIEW REGULAR DRAINAGE MEETING AGENDA
Courthouse Large Conference Room

Work Session Re: Budgets And Appropriations & Safety Coordinator Position
Courthouse Large Conference Room 

1. 9:00 A.M.

2.

3.

4.

Documents:

5.

Documents:

6.

7.

8.

9.

Documents:

10.

Documents:

11.

Documents:

12.

13.

Documents:

14.

Documents:

15.

16.

17.

Documents:

18.

19.

20.

21.

22. 9:30 A.M.

23. 11:00 A.M.



Tuesday, June 30, 2020

NOTICE: Public attendance at public meetings is restricted due to COVID-19 concerns.  To 

access and participate in the meetings remotely, please call 641-939-8108 for meeting 
information.  

Call To Order
Courthouse Large Conference Room

Pledge Of Allegiance

Approval Of Agenda

Approval Of Minutes

06-24-2020 MINUTES.PDF

Approval Of Claims For Payment

VENDOR PUBLICATION REPORT 6-30-20.PDF

Utility Permits & Secondary Roads Department

FY 2021 Fuel

Pickup Quotes

Re-Appropriations Resolution FY 2020

RE-APPROPRIATIONS AMENDMENT RESOLUTION.PDF

Proposals For Upgrades To Elevators At Courthouse And County Office Building

HARDIN COUNTY 2020 CODE UPGRADES.PDF

Central Iowa Juvenile Detention Center Audit

FY 19 CIJDC AUDIT FINAL.PDF

Tax Abatements: Ellsworth Neighborhood Investment Group

Recommendation To The DNR On Animal Feeding Operation Construction Permit 
Application: 110 Pork Shop Site, Section 6, Alden Township 

110 PORK SHOP APPLICATION.PDF

Application For Fireworks Permit – Union Betterment

FIREWORKS PERMIT APPLICATION - UNION BETTERMENT.PDF

Application For Fireworks Permit – Larry Balvanz

Change Of Status – Auditor ’s Office

Changes Of Status – Secondary Roads

CHANGES OF STATUS - SECONDARY ROADS.PDF

COVID-19 Update

Public Comments

Other Business

Adjournment/Recess

Drainage
VIEW REGULAR DRAINAGE MEETING AGENDA
Courthouse Large Conference Room

Work Session Re: Budgets And Appropriations & Safety Coordinator Position
Courthouse Large Conference Room 

1. 9:00 A.M.

2.

3.

4.

Documents:

5.

Documents:

6.

7.

8.

9.

Documents:

10.

Documents:

11.

Documents:

12.

13.

Documents:

14.

Documents:

15.

16.

17.

Documents:

18.

19.

20.

21.

22. 9:30 A.M.

23. 11:00 A.M.

https://www.hardincountyia.gov/AgendaCenter/ViewFile/Agenda/_06302020-1736?html=true
https://www.hardincountyia.gov/0a602356-311f-4ca4-8fef-104e1a0f3a06


HARDIN COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
MINUTES – JUNE 24, 2020
WEDNESDAY  -  9:00 A.M.

COURTHOUSE LARGE CONFERENCE ROOM

Chair Lance Granzow called the meeting to order.  The meeting was held electronically due to
COVID-19 public health risks.  Also in attendance were Supervisors BJ Hoffman and Reneé

McClellan; and Thomas Craighton, Connie Mesch, Curt Groen, Gene Newgaard, Dave
McDaniel, Brian Ritland, Josh Odom, Lori Kadner, Megan Kirik, Laura Cunningham, JD
Holmes, Justin Ites, Bette Dossman, Cody Smith, Bret Dublinske, Darla Kalous, Jody Anderson,
Roger Nissly, Mark Buschkamp, Mariah Lynne, Nick Boeyink, Wes Wiese, Jake Ketzner, Max
Friedman, Linn Adams, Abby Flatness, Machel Eichmeier, Kerri Johannsen, Cheryl Lawrence,
Nick Schutt, Denise Smith, Seth Wengert, Brent Tripp, Jessica Lara, Michael Pearce, Taylor
Roll, Jessica Sheridan, Angela De La Riva, Darrell Meyer, and Angela Silvey.

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

McClellan moved, Hoffman seconded to approve the agenda as posted.  Motion carried.

Hoffman moved, McClellan seconded to table the second consideration of the amendment to
Article XXIII of Ordinance No. 29 as modified by the Board of Supervisors until July 8, 2020 at
9:01 a.m.  In the meantime, County and RWE Renewables representatives will meet.  Motion
carried. 

No action was taken to set a time and date for final consideration and adoption of the amendment
to Article XXIII of Ordinance No. 29 as modified by the Board of Supervisors.   

McClellan moved, Hoffman seconded to approve the minutes of May 27, 2020 and June 17,
2020.  Motion carried.

Hoffman moved, McClellan seconded to approve the June 24, 2020 claims for payment.  Motion
carried.

Utility Permits: None.

Secondary Roads:
County Engineer Taylor Roll advised he was notified of water over the road, and Maintenance
Superintendent Greg Ringena is negotiating a land purchase in order to move a road due to
erosion.  

McClellan moved, Hoffman seconded that the following Resolution No. 2020-20, a resolution
establishing GG Avenue, be adopted.  Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” McClellan, Hoffman, and
Granzow.  “Nays” None.  Resolution No. 2020-20 is hereby adopted as follows:

RESOLUTION 2020-20

WHEREAS, Hardin County has secured right-of-way easements from Patricia Warmbier for
construction of a new roadway adjacent to her property in Section 12 of Buckeye Township; and

WHEREAS, said new roadway right-of-way having a width of 66 feet and whose east line runs
along the west line of the SW ¼, SE ¼, Section 12, T-88N, R-22W, starting at 180th Street and
extending northerly approximately 1,320 feet; and

WHEREAS, it is in Hardin County’s best interest to accept and dedicate a new public roadway
as described above; and

WHEREAS, said roadway shall be designated as GG Avenue for the purpose of E-911.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Hardin County Board of Supervisors to
accept and dedicate a new public roadway whose east line runs along the west line of the SW ¼,



SE ¼, Section 12, T-88N, R-22W, starting at 180th Street and extending northerly approximately
1,320 feet.

PASSED AND APPROVED this 24th day of June, 2020.

HARDIN COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

/s/ Lance Granzow
Lance Granzow, Chair

ATTEST:

/s/ Jessica Lara
Jessica Lara, Hardin County Auditor

Hoffman moved, McClellan seconded to approve entering into a Government Equipment Lease-
Purchase Agreement, Transaction 3900311, with CAT Financial for the lease-purchase of a CAT
323 Excavator.  Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” Hoffman, McClellan, and Granzow.  “Nays” None.
Motion carried.

McClellan moved, Hoffman seconded to approve the Iowa DOT Agreement 1-20-HBP-SWAP-
001 for Bridge 11009.  Motion carried.

Hoffman moved, McClellan seconded to approve the Iowa DOT Agreement 1-20-HBP-SWAP-
031 for Bridge 12015.  Motion carried.

Community Services Director Linn Adams spoke about the Friendship Club becoming a new
entity as of July 1, 2020, and usage of a bus purchased with donation, and the following action
was taken: 

Hoffman moved, McClellan seconded to relinquish interest in chattel property in possession of
the Friendship Club, including the vehicles titled to the County, and directing the Board Chair or
designee to execute any documents necessary to effectuate the relinquishment.  Roll Call Vote:
“Ayes” Hoffman, McClellan, and Granzow.  “Nays” None.  Motion carried.

Hoffman moved, McClellan seconded to appoint the following individuals as members of the
Faith in Action Friendship Club Inc. Board of Directors for one- and two-year terms
commencing July 1, 2020 as follows.  Motion carried.

1 Year Term 2 Year Term
Robin England Jerry Kramer
Tim Rogers Joan Geil
Bev Dirksen Robin Hartkopp
Sandi Butt Eileen Kruse
Linn Adams Miriam Webber

Ruth Norem
Dave Elerding

Hoffman moved, McClellan seconded to adopt and approve the updated Emergency Mode of
Operations Plan for Community Services.  Motion carried.

McClellan moved, Hoffman seconded to table action on Public Assistance Grant No. 4483 until
9:55 a.m.  Motion carried.

McClellan moved, Hoffman seconded to approve the Board Chair to execute finance documents
pursuant to Resolution 2019-14.  Motion carried.

County Treasurer Machel Eichmeier spoke about a request from Craig, Smith & Cutler LLP to
assign a tax sale certificate, and the following action was taken:  



Hoffman moved, McClellan seconded that the following Resolution No. 2020-21, Agreement for
Assignment of Certificates of Purchase at Tax Sale, be adopted.  Roll Call Vote: “Ayes”

Hoffman, McClellan, and Granzow.  “Nays” None.  Resolution No. 2020-21 is hereby adopted
as follows:

HARDIN COUNTY RESOLUTION NO. 2020-21

AGREEMENT FOR ASSIGNMENT OF CERTIFICATES OF PURCHASE AT TAX SALE

The undersigned County of Hardin, State of Iowa, by authority of the Board of
Supervisors of Hardin County, Iowa, hereinafter referred to as the "County"; and Jerome M.
Coellner & Janet S. Coellner, hereinafter referred to as "Coellners", hereby enter into the
following Agreement for the assignment of a certain certificate of purchase at tax sale.

WHEREAS, the County is the owner of a Certificate of Purchase at Tax Sale No.
CH18005 for a parcel of real property located in the City of Eldora, Hardin County, Iowa,
described as:

Lot 9, Auditor’s Second Plat, Hubbard, Iowa, except the East 233 .0 feet thereof;
AND
The West (W) 10.25 feet of the East 233.0 feet of Lot 9, Auditor's Second Plat, Hubbard,

Iowa, except the East 90.0 feet of the North 125.0 feet of said Lot 9; and

WHEREAS, Coellners anticipate becoming the neighboring landowner; and

      WHEREAS, the County acquired the aforementioned tax sale certificate as public bidder
on the tax sale per Iowa Code section 446.19 and the County desires to assign said certificate to
Coellners for the amount of $68.00 and the assignment fee of $10.00 on the following
conditions:

      1. Said certificate may not be sold or assigned to a third party without prior written
approval of the Board of Supervisors;
      2. Upon assignment the assignees will pay any other delinquent real estate taxes on the
property; and
      3. In the event of a redemption by any party, all tax certifying bodies shall receive their
proportionate interest; and

      WHEREAS, the County agrees that should no party entitled by law to redeem said
certificate in fact properly redeem said certificate and Coellners follow all statutory requirements
for issuance of tax sale deed, the County Treasurer shall be authorized to issue said tax sale deed
as contemplated by Chapters 447 and 448 of the Code of Iowa;

     NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY AGREED that Hardin County shall and hereby
does assign to Jerome M. Coellner and Janet S. Coellner the Certificate of Purchase at Tax Sale
No. CH18005, the same to be signed by the Treasurer after receiving payment by Coellners of
the sum of $78.00, which sum includes the fee of $10.00 as contemplated by Iowa Code section
446.31, provided that such assignment shall be without compromise as to the total amount due
and provided further in the event of redemption by any party, all tax levying and certifying
bodies having an interest in the funds represented by said Certificate of Purchase at Tax Sale No.
CH18005 shall receive their proportionate share of any amount so received upon redemption.

Dated this 24th day of June, 2020.

HARDIN COUNTY, IOWA

By: /s/ Lance Granzow 
Lance Granzow, Chairperson
Board of Supervisors

Attest:

/s/ Jessica Lara



Jessica Lara, Hardin County Auditor

Dated this ___ day of _____________, 2020.

_________________________
Jerome M. Coellner

_________________________
Janet S. Coellner

WHEREUPON Board Member Hoffman moved that the following Resolution be adopted:

APPROPRIATIONS RESOLUTION AMENDMENT

RESOLUTION No. 2020-22

On April 22, 2020, a budget hearing for an amendment was held.  The budget amendment was
approved and the following appropriation amendments shall be made as deemed necessary:

Office or Department    Amended Appropriation Amount
General Services – Dept 50    +$225,000
Secondary Roads/Engineer    -$330,000

Motion was seconded by Board Member McClellan and after due consideration thereof, the roll
was called and the following Board Members voted:

AYES: Hoffman, McClellan, and Granzow
NAYS:    None
ABSENT:     None
ABSTAIN:    None

Whereupon, the Chair of the Board of Supervisors declared said Resolution duly passed and
adopted this 24th day of June, 2020.

/s/ Lance Granzow
Lance Granzow, Chairman
Board of Supervisors

ATTEST:

/s/ Jessica Lara
Jessica Lara
Hardin County Auditor

WHEREUPON Board Member McClellan moved that the following Resolution be adopted:

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-23

APPROPRIATIONS RESOLUTION
2020/2021 FISCAL YEAR

WHEREAS, it is desired to make appropriations for each of the different offices and departments
for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, in accordance with Section 331.434, Subsection 6,
Code of Iowa, 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of Supervisors of Hardin County, Iowa, as
follows: 



Section 1.  The amounts itemized by fund and by department or office on the attached schedule
are hereby appropriated from the resources of each fund so itemized, to the department or office
listed in the first column on the same line of the attached schedule. 

Section 2.  Subject to the provisions of other county procedures and regulations and applicable
state law, the appropriations authorized under Section 1 shall constitute authorization for the
department or officer listed to make expenditures or incur obligations from the itemized fund
effective July 1, 2020. 

Section 3.  In accordance with Section 331.437, Code of Iowa, no department or officer shall
expend or contract to expend any money or incur any liability, or enter into any contract which
by its terms involves the expenditures of money for any purpose in excess of the amounts
appropriated pursuant to this resolution. 

Section 4.  If at any time during the 2020/2021 budget year the Auditor shall ascertain that the
available resources of a fund for that year will be less than said fund’s total appropriations, she
shall immediately so inform the Board and recommend appropriate corrective action. 

Section 5.  The Auditor shall establish separate accounts for the appropriations authorized in
Section 1, each of which account shall indicate the amount of the appropriation, the amounts
charged thereto, and the unencumbered balance.  The Auditor shall report the status of such
accounts to applicable departments and officers monthly during the 2020/2021 budget year. 

Section 6.  All appropriations authorized pursuant to this resolution lapse at the close of business
June 30, 2021. 

The appropriations schedule is as follows:

   OFFICE OR             50%
DEPARTMENT APPROPRIATION

       AMOUNT

Board of Supervisors    $297,317
Auditor     $234,559
Treasurer    $288,207
Attorney    $227,665
Sheriff     $2,437,110

 Recorder     $115,219
Information Technology/GIS $262,944
Economic Development   $81,198
County Engineer   $3,596,044
Veterans’ Affairs   $39,232
Conservation Board   $425,928
Health Board    $193,580
IRVM     $124,317
General Assistance   $30,666
Clerk of Court    $32,675
Pioneer Cemetery   $12,750
General Services – Courthouse $167,850
General Services – Misc.  $39,500
General Services – Co. Office Bldg. $14,600
DHS     $4,263
Mental Health Admin.   $471,959
Chemical Dependency   $2,238
Insurance     $246,196
Non-departmental 89   $462,491
Debt Service    $814,955

          Inter-fund Operating Transfers $1,061,359
          Non-Departmental 99   $144,992

     SUBTOTAL    $11,829,814

Non-County Funds/Commissions



   **Assessor    $179,198
   **E911    $338,625
   **Emergency Management $73,017
   TOTAL $12,420,654

The motion was seconded by Board Member Hoffman and after due Consideration thereof, the
roll was called and the following Board Members voted:

AYES:          McClellan, Hoffman, and Granzow
NAYS:          None
ABSENT: None
ABSTAIN: None

Whereupon, the Chair of the Board of Supervisors declared said Resolution duly passed
And adopted this 24th day of June, 2020.

/s/ Lance Granzow
Lance Granzow, Chairman
Hardin County Board of Supervisors

ATTEST:

/s/ Jessica Lara
Jessica Lara
Hardin County Auditor

WHEREUPON Board Member McClellan moved that the following Resolution be adopted:

RESOLUTION No. 2020-24

RESOLUTION FOR INTER-FUND OPERATING TRANSFERS

WHEREAS, it is desired to authorize the Auditor to periodically transfer sums from the General
Basic Fund to the Capital Projects Fund and Secondary Road Fund; and from the Rural Services
Basic Fund to the Secondary Road Fund during the 2020/2021 fiscal budget year, and 

WHEREAS, said transfers must be in accordance with Section 331.432, Code of Iowa,

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of Supervisors of Hardin County, Iowa, as
follows: 

Section 1.  The total maximum transfers from the General Basic Fund to Secondary Road Fund
shall not exceed $172,095; and the total maximum transfer from Rural Services Basic Fund to
the Secondary Road Fund shall not exceed the sum of $1,950,622; for fiscal year beginning July
1, 2020. 

Section 2.  When notified of the apportionment of current property taxes, state replacements
against levied property taxes, mobile home taxes, military service tax credit replacements, or
livestock credit replacements to the General Basic or Rural Services Basic funds, the Auditor
shall order a transfer from said fund to the Secondary Road Fund. 

Section 3.  The amount of the transfer required by Section 2 shall be equal to the apportionment
made under Section 2 to the General Basic or Rural Basic Fund, respectively, multiplied by the
ratio of said fund’s total maximum transfer to the Secondary Road Fund, to the sum of said
fund’s total current property tax levy, total mobile home taxes, total military service tax credit
replacements, and total livestock credit replacements.   

Section 4.  Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 2 and 3 of this resolution, total transfers to
the above mentioned funds shall not exceed the amount specified in Section 1.

Section 5.  Notwithstanding the provisions of Sections 2 and 3, the amount of any transfer shall
not exceed available fund balances in the transferring fund. 



Section 6.  The Auditor is directed to correct her books when said operating transfers are made
and to notify the Treasurer and County Engineer of the amounts of said transfers. 

The motion was seconded by Board Member Hoffman and after due consideration thereof, the
roll was called and the following Board Members voted:

 AYES:        McClellan, Hoffman, and Granzow
 NAYS:        None
 ABSENT: None
 ABSTAIN: None

Whereupon, the Chair of the Board of Supervisors declared said Resolution duly passed and
adopted this 24th day of June, 2020.

/s/ Lance Granzow
Lance Granzow, Chairman
Board of Supervisors

ATTEST:

/s/ Jessica Lara
Jessica Lara
Hardin County Auditor

WHEREUPON Board Member Hoffman moved that the following Resolution be adopted:

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-25

ADVANCE ISSUANCE OF PAYMENTS RESOLUTION
2020/2021 FISCAL YEAR

WHEREAS, The Board of Supervisors, pursuant to Section 331.506(3)(a and b), Code of Iowa,
may authorize the County Auditor to issue payment when said Board is not in session for the
following purposes:   

1. Fixed charges including but not limited to, freight, express, postage, water, light, and
telephone service or contracted services, after a bill is filed with the auditor. 

2. Salaries and payrolls if the compensation has been fixed or approved by the Board.  The salary
or payroll shall be certified by the officer or supervisor under whose direction or supervision the
compensation is earned.  

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of Supervisors of Hardin County, Iowa, the
County Auditor is authorized to issue payments for the aforementioned when said Board is not in
session during Fiscal Year 2020/2021. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, all bills paid under provisions of Section 331.506 (3)(a and b),
Code of Iowa, shall be submitted to the board for review and approval at its next meeting
following the payment.  The action of the board shall be recorded in the minutes of the board. 

The motion was seconded by Board Member McClellan and after due Consideration thereof, the
roll was called and the following Board Members voted:

AYES:     Hoffman, McClellan, and Granzow
NAYS:          None
ABSENT:    None
ABSTAIN:   None

Whereupon, the Chair of the Board of Supervisors declared said Resolution duly passed
And adopted this 24th day of June, 2020.



/s/ Lance Granzow
Lance Granzow, Chairman
Hardin County Board of Supervisors

ATTEST:

/s/ Jessica Lara
Jessica Lara
Hardin County Auditor

WHEREUPON Board Member McClellan moved that the following Resolution be adopted:

RESOLUTION No. 2020-26

RESOLUTION FOR BUDGET APPROPRIATION ADJUSTMENTS
WITHIN THE SAME SERVICE AREA

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Hardin County Board of Supervisors that the Hardin
County Auditor is authorized to make the necessary budget appropriations within the ten service
areas and the various organizations for the 2020/2021 fiscal year. 

The motion was seconded by Board Member Hoffman, and after due consideration thereof, the
roll was called and the following Board Members voted:

 AYES: McClellan, Hoffman, and Granzow
 NAYS:        None
 ABSENT:   None
 ABSTAIN:  None

Whereupon, the Chair of the Board of Supervisors declared said Resolution duly passed and
adopted this 24th day of June, 2020.

/s/ Lance Granzow
Lance Granzow, Chairman
Board of Supervisors

ATTEST:

/s/ Jessica Lara
Jessica Lara
Hardin County Auditor

Granzow read aloud a letter of request from Del Johnston, on behalf of Ferris Pork Site, Section
16, Ellis Township, and the following action was taken:

WHEREUPON Board Member McClellan moved that the following Resolution be adopted:

RESOLUTION No. 2020-27

Hardin County Board of Supervisors

June 24, 2020

APPROVAL OF WAIVER OF HARDIN COUNTY’S RIGHT TO APPEAL ISSUANCE
OF FINAL CONSTRUCTION PERMIT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF CONFINED
ANIMAL FEEDING OPERATION BY THE IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL
RESOURCES.

BE IT RESOLVED by the Hardin County Board of Supervisors as follows:



Section 1   The Hardin County Board of Supervisors has received notice from the Iowa
Department of Natural Resources (DNR) that Brock Ferris on behalf of Ferris Pork, LLC has
been 

issued a draft permit for the construction of a confined animal feeding operation
building(s) at 18400 JJ Ave., Iowa Falls, IA 50126 in unincorporated Hardin County.

Section 2 The Hardin County Board of Supervisors reviewed the construction permit
application 

and the manure management plan and determined that both appeared to be in
compliance with the requirements of the Master Matrix, Iowa Code Section 459 and
Iowa DNR rules and recommended approval of said application on June 10, 2020.

Section 3 The Hardin County Board of Supervisors hereby waives its right to appeal the
issuance 

of the final permit within the fourteen (14) day limit from the time of receipt of notice
of the issuance of the draft permit.

Section 4 The Hardin County Board of Supervisors encourages the Iowa DNR to issue the Final
Permit immediately upon notification of this waiver.

Section 5 The Hardin County Board of Supervisors authorizes the Board Chairman to notify the
Iowa DNR of this waiver.

Section 6 This resolution shall take effect immediately.

The motion was seconded by Board Member Hoffman and after due consideration thereof, the
roll was called and the following Board Members voted:

AYES: McClellan, Hoffman, and Granzow
NAYS: None
ABSENT: None
ABSTAIN: None

Whereupon, the Chair of the Board of Supervisors declared said Resolution duly passed and
adopted this 24th day of June, 2020.

/s/ Lance Granzow
Lance Granzow, Chairman
Board of Supervisors

ATTEST:

/s/ Jessica Lara
Jessica Lara
Hardin County Auditor

Hoffman moved, McClellan seconded to approve the application for fireworks permit submitted
by Gehrke’s Lake and Campground, for July 4, 2020, at 19747 205th Street, Iowa Falls.  Motion
carried. 

Hoffman moved, McClellan seconded to approve the application for liquor license for Pine Lake
Country Club, Class C Liquor License, Outdoor Service and Sunday Sales, 7/17/2020 –

7/16/2021.  Motion carried.  

Hoffman moved, McClellan seconded to adopt the Hardin County Major Medical Plan.  Motion
carried. 

Hoffman moved, McClellan seconded to approve the transfer of Parker Manning, Friendship
Club Assistant-PRN, from County employment to FIA Friendship Club 501(c)(3) employment,
effective 06/30/2020.  Motion carried.



Hoffman moved, McClellan seconded to approve the transfer of Mary Nelson, Friendship Club
Coordinator, from County employment to FIA Friendship Club 501(c)(3) employment, effective
06/30/2020.  Motion carried.

Hoffman moved, McClellan seconded to approve the transfer of Kathy Vitasek, Friendship Club
Assistant, from County employment to FIA Friendship Club 501(c)(3) employment, effective
06/30/2020.  Motion carried.

McClellan moved, Hoffman seconded to approve the discharge of George Haefner,
temporary/seasonal Park Aide Intern, due to end of seasonal work, effective 06/24/2020.  Motion
carried.  

Hoffman moved, McClellan seconded to table a Change of Status for the Environmental
Health/Zoning Department.  Motion carried.

Hoffman moved, McClellan seconded to approve a pay increase for Jody Mesch, Property
Manager, to a salary of $75,500/year, effective 07/01/2020.  Discussion ensued on whether or
not employees should be compensated in the event of staff shortages.  “Ayes” None.  “Nays”

Hoffman, McClellan, and Granzow.  Motion failed.

Hoffman moved, McClellan seconded to approve the discharge of Amy Robb, Dispatcher,
effective 06/15/2020.  Motion carried.  

Hoffman moved, McClellan seconded to approve the resignation of Matthew Evans,
Correctional Officer, effective 06/16/2020.  Motion carried.

Hoffman moved, McClellan seconded to approve the discharge of Jacob Sweet, Correctional
Officer, due to no-show for training.  Motion carried. 

COVID-19 Update:
Emergency Management Coordinator Thomas Craighton stated that public health agencies have
sent out press releases reminding people COVID persists and to be diligent with prevention.
Craighton continues to evaluate processes for opening County buildings and to look into grants.
A large amount of PPE is still being processed to nursing homes and hospitals.

Public Comments:
A thank-you was received from Donna Juber.

Other Business: None.

Hoffman moved, McClellan seconded to recess.  Motion carried.

At 9:55 a.m. Chair Granzow reconvened the meeting.  The meeting was held electronically due
to COVID-19 public health risks.  Also in attendance: Supervisors Hoffman and McClellan; and
Denise Smith, Mark Buschkamp, JD Holmes, Lori Kadner, Nick Schutt, Seth Wengert, Brian
Ritland, Abby Flatness, Brent Tripp, Curt Groen, Bob Havens, Taylor Roll, Angela De La Riva,
Jessica Sheridan, Michael Pearce, Thomas Craighton, and Angela Silvey.

Craighton, addressing the matter of Public Assistance Grant No. 4483, explained that both
Emergency Management, as a separate entity, and the County are able to apply for federal funds
for COVID response, but FEMA and State Public Assistance recommended that only one entity
submit application.

McClellan moved, Hoffman seconded to approve the Public Assistance Grant No. 4483 to be
administered through the Emergency Management Department, and Hardin County will
relinquish its application for said grant.  Motion carried.

Seth Wengert, on behalf of Tri-B Site Section 8, Section 8, Alden Township, made a verbal
request to the Board, and the following action was taken:

WHEREUPON Board Member Hoffman moved that the following Resolution be adopted:



RESOLUTION No. 2020-28

Hardin County Board of Supervisors

June 24, 2020

APPROVAL OF WAIVER OF HARDIN COUNTY’S RIGHT TO APPEAL ISSUANCE
OF FINAL CONSTRUCTION PERMIT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF CONFINED
ANIMAL FEEDING OPERATION BY THE IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL
RESOURCES.

BE IT RESOLVED by the Hardin County Board of Supervisors as follows:

Section 1   The Hardin County Board of Supervisors has received notice from the Iowa
Department of Natural Resources (DNR) that Tri-B Farms, LLC has been issued a draft permit
for 

the construction of a confined animal feeding operation building(s) at NE1/4, NE1/4,
Section 8, Ellis Township in unincorporated Hardin County.

Section 2 The Hardin County Board of Supervisors reviewed the construction permit
application 

and the manure management plan and determined that both appeared to be in
compliance with the requirements of the Master Matrix, Iowa Code Section 459 and
Iowa DNR rules and recommended approval of said application on June 10, 2020.

Section 3 The Hardin County Board of Supervisors hereby waives its right to appeal the
issuance 

of the final permit within the fourteen (14) day limit from the time of receipt of notice
of the issuance of the draft permit.

Section 4 The Hardin County Board of Supervisors encourages the Iowa DNR to issue the Final
Permit immediately upon notification of this waiver.

Section 5 The Hardin County Board of Supervisors authorizes the Board Chairman to notify the
Iowa DNR of this waiver.

Section 6 This resolution shall take effect immediately.

The motion was seconded by Board Member McClellan and after due consideration thereof, the
roll was called and the following Board Members voted:

AYES: Hoffman, McClellan, and Granzow
NAYS: None
ABSENT: None
ABSTAIN: None

Whereupon, the Chair of the Board of Supervisors declared said Resolution duly passed and
adopted this 24th day of June, 2020.

/s/ Lance Granzow
Lance Granzow, Chairman
Board of Supervisors

ATTEST:

/s/ Jessica Lara
Jessica Lara
Hardin County Auditor

Hoffman moved, McClellan seconded to adjourn.  Motion carried.



At 10:11 a.m. Chair Granzow opened the public hearing on the Animal Feeding Operation
Construction Permit – 110 Pork Shop Site, Section 6, Alden Township.  The meeting was held
electronically due to COVID-19 public health risks.  Also in attendance: Supervisors Hoffman
and McClellan; and Bob Havens, Brian Ritland, Curt Groen, Denise Smith, Lori Kadner, Nick
Schutt, Seth Wengert, Michael Pearce, Jessica Sheridan, and Angela Silvey.

Proof of publication was verified by Jessica Sheridan, Environmental Health
Specialist/Sanitarian.

Brian Ritland reviewed the construction permit application.

Oral comments were heard from Bob Havens on phosphorus index calculation, phosphorus
application, and effect on Pine Lake Watershed, and from Nick Schutt on oversaturation of
animal feeding operations in his area of the county.   

No written comments were received.

There being no other comments or objections, Hoffman moved, McClellan seconded to close the
public hearing.  Motion carried.

Hoffman moved, McClellan seconded to adjourn.  Motion carried.

At 1:00 p.m., the department heads/elected officials meeting was called to order.  The meeting
was held electronically due to COVID-19 public health risks.  In attendance: Supervisors
Granzow, Hoffman, and McClellan; and Wes Wiese, Jessica Lara, Matt Jones, Dave McDaniel,
Machel Eichmeier, Don Knoell, Bernie Koehrsen, Linn Adams, Thomas Craighton, Michael
Pearce, Taylor Roll, Angela De La Riva, Jody Mesch, Darrell Meyer, Lori Kadner, and Angela
Silvey.  

Department heads assessed the soft reopening of County buildings.  Solutions to prevent
overcrowding in the vestibule, particularly in adverse weather, were discussed.  Thomas
Craighton will confer with Carey Callaway, Quaker Security, on best practices.

Other Business:
Linn Adams provided an update on the County wellness program, and Taylor Roll and Adams
shared information on activities planned for July and August.  

 Hoffman moved, McClellan seconded to adjourn.  Motion carried.

 

____________________________                  ____________________________
Lance Granzow, Chair                                                Jessica Lara             

Board of Supervisors                                                           Hardin County Auditor



Claims Payable - June 30, 2020

Aaron Boeler $700.00
Ackley Publishing Co. Inc $110.12
Agri-Pro Enterprises of Iowa Inc $766.50
Alliant Energy $22.49
Angela De La Riva $131.40
Barco Municipal Products $146.92
Campbell Supply Co $239.28
Carl Kruger $500.00
Central Iowa Distr Inc $863.60
CenturyLink $178.47
City of Hubbard $60.76
Coban Technologies, Inc $4,905.50
Connie Sefcik $56.00
Counsel Office & Document $13.69
Country Car Shop $937.50
DBI Services $47,261.63
Dennis T Heetland $500.00
Dubuque County Sheriff $30.00
GATR of Des Moines, Inc $1,043.21
GovConnection, Inc $8,723.71
Gray Manufacturing Co., Inc. $1,521.00
Guardian RFID $465.92
Hamilton County Sheriff $258.75
Hy-Vee $110.53
Ia Dept of Public Safety $2,250.00
Iowa County Attorneys Assoc $400.00
Iowa Law Enforcement Academy $1,000.00
Iowa Prison Industries $1,404.10
Iowa State University $65.00
ISAC $75.00
Jody L Mesch $40.00
Knight Sanitation $146.00
LaVelle Lawn Care $473.00
Marla Kay Williams $273.00
Martin Marietta Aggregate $6,581.56
Mary J Swartz $7.09
Murphy Tractor & Equipment $415.54
Paul Martin $75.00
Pinecrest Mobile Home Park $200.00
Quaker Security LLC $5,370.00
R Comm Wireless $9,212.80
Racom Corporation $58.74
Roto Rooter $160.00
Secretary of State $125.40
Sidwell Company $6,344.10
South Hardin Signal Review Inc $154.00
Storey Kenworthy $337.86
Summit Food Service LLC $3,723.16
Thomson Reuters - West $54.56
Times Citizen $337.02
U.S. Post Office $220.00
Van Wall Equipment Inc $419.02
VISA $340.58
Walmart Community $40.25
William J Hoffman $106.96
Windstream Communications $1,075.44
Youth & Shelter Services Inc $886.35



Grand Total $111,918.51

___________________________________________ ______________________________________________
Lance Granzow, Chair Jessica Lara
Board of Supervisors Hardin County Auditor



 

 

 

 

WHEREUPON Board Member ____________________moved that the following 

Resolution be adopted: 

 

RE-APPROPRIATIONS AMENDMENT RESOLUTION 

 

RESOLUTION No. 2020 - _____ 

 

Due to moving money in the same service area on June 25, 2020 the following 

appropriation amendments shall be made.   

 

Office or Department    Amended Appropriation Amount 

 

Health Board (SA3)     - $10,000 

General Assistance  (SA3)    +$10,000 

Economic Development (SA10)   - $4,000 

Debt Service (SA10)     + $4,000 

 

Motion was seconded by Board Member ____________________and after due 

consideration thereof, the roll was called and the following Board Members voted: 

 

AYES:         

NAYS:        

ABSENT:        

ABSTAIN:        

 

Whereupon, the Chair of the Board of Supervisors declared said Resolution duly passed 

and adopted this _______day of ___________, 2020. 

 

 

____________________________ 

Lance Granzow, Chairperson 

Board of Supervisors 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Jessica Lara 

Hardin County Auditor 

 



PROPOSAL 
PROJECT NAME: HARDIN COUNTY COURTHOUSE

Schumacher Elevator Company  |  One Schumacher Way, Denver, Iowa 50622  |  (319) 984-5676
http://www.schumacherelevator.com/

PROJECT ID: SCH000017-2050 DATE: 6/26/2020 

JOBSITE: BILL:Hardin County Courthouse
1215 Edgington
Eldora, IA 50627

Hardin County Board of Supervisors
1215 Edgington
Eldora, IA 50627

Attn: Angela Silvey

RE:  A17.3 Code Required Elevator Upgrades – Original Compliance Date May 1, 2020

We propose to furnish labor and materials to complete the following required upgrades on your Schumacher Hydraulic Passenger 
Elevator (State ID 1008):

* Install car door restrictor (except freight & collapsible gate) [2.7.5]

The following is to be completed by customer:

* Machinery space clear of pipes and conduit [2.2.5]

We propose to hereby furnish labor and material - complete in accordance with the specifications outlined in this document for the 
sum of:

FOUR THOUSAND NINE HUNDRED TWENTY DOLLARS AND 0/100 $4,920.00

NOTICE:  This proposal will be withdrawn by Schumacher Elevator Company if not accepted within 60 days.  A binding contract 
agreement is required in order to commence work.  

If you have any questions, please contact me at (319) 406-1266 or email me at ted.duffy@schumacherelevator.com. 

Thank you,

Ted Duffy
Vice President Sales & Service

 FOR INTERNAL USE: The attached scope of work is reconstruction to real property in the state of Iowa.

http://www.schumacherelevator.com/


OBLIGATIONS OF OWNER
The following work is the responsibility of the Owner, and at no cost to Schumacher Elevator Company. All work to be 
performed per the latest revision of the applicable national code and/or local code.

GENERAL WORK
a. Provide all cutting of walls, floors or partitions, together with all repairs made necessary by such cutting or changes; 
b. Provide a staging and storage area close to the elevator hoistway;
c. Provide for removal of all spoils and debris accumulated during excavation from the lowest landing of the premises as required; 
d. Both legal hoistway and machine room must be maintained at a temperature range 55°F - 85°F;
e. Provide proper support and install inserts provided by Schumacher Elevator Company as shown on G-1 print of the approved 

drawings;
f. Provide a legal machine room of adequate size, properly ventilated, lighted and heated per Elevator Code; 
g. Provide routing for hydraulic and electrical lines;
h. Provide and install heat and smoke detectors as required; 
i. Complete all this work in such time as not to delay work of Schumacher Elevator Company; 
j. The price and installation schedule of Schumacher Elevator Company is based on these jobsite conditions existing at the beginning 

and during installation of the elevator equipment;
k. Complete all work prior to state inspection, if reinspection is required, the cost will be shared by the parties involved.
l. Provide a fire extinguisher in the machine room or in a location convenient to the machine space.
m. In accordance with code, if sprinklers are installed in hoistway, machine room, control space or machine space, provide means to 

automatically disconnect the main line power supply of the affected elevator and any other power supplies used to move the 
elevator upon the application of water is required (Not applicable in the state of Minnesota);

HOISTWAY & PIT WORK
n. Provide a legal hoistway of proper size with adequate pit depth, overhead height and be constructed to withstand forces and loads 

resulting from the use of the elevator;
o. Provide code compliant means to extract water from the pit;
p. Provide a hoisting beam as required at top of hoistway for digging and hoisting; 
q. Provide all necessary sill supports; 
r. Fill in around jack hole in pit, build in around door frames and grout under sills, as required by elevator contractor; 
s. Provide all cutting of walls, floors or partitions, together with all repairs made necessary by such cutting or changes; 
t. Provide all painting including hoistway doors and frames furnished with prime finish; 
u. Provide means to guard and protect the hoistway during the time the elevator is being installed;
v. Provide sump pump and sump pit in elevator hoistway floor; 

ELECTRICAL WORK
w. Electrical disconnects, one for three phase and several single-phase power supplies, with properly sized wires, as require by the 

manufacturer;
x. Provide standby power unit and means for starting it, that will deliver enough regulated power to the elevator disconnect switches 

to operate one or more elevators at a time at full-rated speed;
y. Provide electrical power to machine room and connect to controller terminals, with an intervening fused disconnect properly 

located in machine room, including shunt trip breakers, if required; 
z. Provide a transfer switch for each feeder for switching from normal power to standby power and a contact on each transfer switch 

closed on normal power supply with two wires from this contact to one elevator controller;
aa. Provide means for absorbing power regenerated by the elevator system when running with overhauling loads such as full load 

down;
bb. Provide any required emergency power of adequate size to include switch gear and preconditioning signals, which may be required;
cc. Provide without charge, adequate power for excavation and tools during construction, starting, testing, and adjusting of equipment; 

dd. Provide a separate 110-volt AC, 15-amp circuit fused disconnect terminated at controller; 
ee. Provide GFI outlet and guarded light and switch; 
ff. Provide means to guard and protect the hoistway during the time the elevator is being installed;
gg. Hoistway lighting. If the controller for an elevator is being replaced, permanent lighting shall be installed in the hoistway of the 

elevator. Three-way switches to control the hoistway lighting shall be installed at the pit access door and the top landing access 
door. The lighting shall be sufficient to provide 10 foot- candles of light to the center of the elevator path measured when the car 
top lights are off. Engineering calculations that prove 10 foot- candles of light are provided to the center of the elevator path may 
be substituted for light meter measurements under circumstances such as a glass back car where use of a light meter is not practical. 
 - Iowa Chapter 73.8 (8);

*Fire control panel by others- per National Fire Alarm Code 6.15.3.2

The owner agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Schumacher Elevator Company against all claims, damages, losses, 
expenses, fines, and penalties, including but not limited to attorneys’ and/or consultants fees, arising out of or resulting 
from the failure of the owner to carry out any obligations of the owner outlined in the foregoing agreement.



CONTRACT ID: SA172050

CONTRACT AGREEMENT  |  PAGE 1 OF 2

SECTION 1 – PAYMENT TERMS 

MILESTONE DESCRIPTION PERCENTAGE VALUE TIMING

Initial Payment Reserves spot on master 
schedule

25% Billed upon execution of 
Agreement.  Payment due upon 
receipt.

Final Payment Completion of work Percentage of 
Completion

Billed upon completion of work. 
Payment due Net 30 days.

 If payment is not made within 30 days of invoicing, the Supplier shall be relieved of the obligation to honor its warranty.
 Purchaser agrees to pay interest at the rate of 1.5% per month or 18% APR on all past due account balances.
 Purchaser agrees to pay all collection costs incurred to collect past due account balances. Collection costs include all 

reasonable attorney fees, collection agency fees, court costs, and litigation expenses.
 Purchaser agrees that should legal action become necessary to enforce collection of past due account balances, 

jurisdiction and venue shall be in the Iowa district court in Bremer County, Iowa.
 Any tax or other governmental charge imposed upon the sale of the goods shall be paid by Purchaser, and Purchaser’s 

failure to pay any applicable tax shall be a breach of this entire agreement. 

SECTION 2 – GENERAL TERMS & CONDITIONS
1. Supplier will complete the scope of work during regular working hours of 6:00 A.M. to 5:00 P.M. (not to exceed 8 hours 

per day for new construction and 10 hours per day for alteration of existing elevators and in either case not to exceed 
40 hours in a work week) during regular working days of Monday to Friday, excluding holidays.   Expedited work schedules 
can be arranged between the Supplier and the Purchaser with a fully executed change order specifying the additional 
compensation to be paid for the expedited work.

2. All work performed outside of the scope of this Agreement will be billed to Purchaser at a single worker rate of $200 per 
man hour for regular time (6am to 5 pm) and $375 per man hour for overtime (after 5pm and before 6am or over 8 hours 
per day or 40 hours in a workweek), plus any expenses.  A team hour (a mechanic and an apprentice) will be billed at a 
rate of $350 per hour for regular time and $675 per hour for overtime, plus any expenses.  Purchaser must enter into a 
change order describing the additional work and confirming the applicable rate before Supplier is required to perform 
work outside the scope of this Agreement. 

3. The terms of this Agreement shall not be supplemented or amended by Purchaser’s bid documents or a contract provided 
by Purchaser.  This Agreement sets forth the entire agreement between the parties.  If the Purchaser accepts the terms 
of this Agreement by issuing a purchase order, Supplier shall not be bound by any of the terms in the purchase order, 
and none of the terms in the purchase order shall have the effect of amending, modifying or nullifying any of the terms 
of this Agreement.  In the event of a conflict between the terms of Purchaser’s purchase order and this Agreement, the 
terms of this Agreement shall govern the contractual relationship between Supplier and Purchaser. 

4. Neither party shall be liable to the other party hereunder for special, indirect, consequential, exemplary or incidental 
damages.   

5. Supplier will secure and maintain minimum insurance coverage to protect against claims for bodily injury or death, or for 
damage to property, which may arise out of the operations by the Supplier or by anyone employed by them.  Certificates 
of Workers’ Compensation, Employer’s Liability, and Commercial General Liability, Commercial Automobile Liability, and 
Umbrella/Excess Liability will be furnished to the Purchaser upon request.  

6. If Purchaser terminates or cancels this Agreement, Purchaser shall be liable for all costs incurred by Supplier through the 
date of Supplier’s receipt of Purchaser’s written notice of cancellation.  Purchaser agrees to pay any cancellation fees 
within ten (10) days of the cancellation date. 

SECTION 3 – WARRANTY
There are two components to Supplier’s warranty.  Supplier warrants and guarantees it shall perform its labor in a skillful 
manner.   Supplier also provides a limited warranty regarding the products manufactured by Supplier.



CONTRACT ID: SA172050

CONTRACT AGREEMENT  |  PAGE 2 OF 2

Supplier’s labor (workmanship) is guaranteed for a period of (1) year from the date the work is completed.  The workmanship 
warranty excludes ordinary wear and tear, improper use, vandalism, abuse, misuse, neglect, or any other causes beyond 
Supplier’s control.  THIS EXPRESS LIMITED WARRANTY WITH RESPECT TO WORKMANSHIP IS IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER 
WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING ANY WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A SPECIFIC 
PURPOSE.

The terms of Supplier’s limited warranty with respect to products manufactured by Supplier are set forth in the “Standard 
Warranty-Packages & Components” attached as EXHIBIT A.

SECTION 4 – INDEMNIFICATION
Supplier shall indemnify and hold Purchaser harmless from and against all claims, damages, losses and expenses arising out of 
or resulting from any negligent act or omission of Supplier, Supplier's Contractors, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by 
Supplier or Supplier's Contractors.  Supplier shall not be obligated to indemnify or hold Purchaser harmless for any claims, 
damages, losses and expenses arising out of or caused in whole or in part by any act or omission of Purchaser, Purchaser's 
other contractors and Contractors, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by or supervised by Purchaser or Purchaser's 
other contractors or Contractors.

SECTION 5 – RISK OF LOSS
Risk of loss shall pass to Purchaser as soon as the materials and equipment are delivered to the jobsite. Purchaser shall pay all 
costs of insurance from the time that risk of loss passes to Purchaser.

SECTION 6 – FORCE MAJEURE
Supplier shall not be responsible for any delivery or failure to make delivery of all or any part of the goods purchased under 
this agreement due to federal, state, or municipal action, statute, ordinance, or regulation, strike or other labor trouble, acts 
of God or natural disasters, riot or other civil disturbance, inability to secure raw materials or supplies, or, without limiting the 
foregoing, by any other cause, contingency, or circumstance within or without the United States not subject to Supplier’s 
control which prevents or hinders the manufacture or delivery of the goods sold hereunder. The provisions of this paragraph 
shall not be limited by any provision in which time is made of the essence.

CONTRACT ACCEPTANCE

Purchaser: {{*Cmpy_es_:signer1:company       }} Supplier: {{*Cmpy2_es_:signer2:company      }}

Signature: {{ *Sig1_es_:signer1:signature                            }} Signature: {{ *Sig2_es_:signer2:signature                   }}
Printed Name: {{*N1_es_:signer1:fullname             }} Printed Name: {{*N2_es_:signer2:fullname                }}

Title: {{*Ttl1_es_:signer1:title                    }} Title: {{*Ttl2_es_:signer2:title                      }}

Date Signed: {{*Dte1_es_:signer1:date                 }} Date Signed: {{*Dte2_es_:signer2:date                   }}

DO YOU NEED TO ISSUE A PURCHASE ORDER? {{ *PO_es_:signer1:dropdown(options="Yes, No”) }} P.O. # {{ *PON_es_:signer1:string:showif (PO="Yes")                                                                                                                }}

{{ PurchaseOrder_es_:signer1:attachment:label(“Purchase Order (Optional)”):align(center):showif(PO=“Yes”) }}



EXHIBIT A  |  PAGE 1 OF 1

EXHIBIT A
STANDARD WARRANTY – PACKAGES & COMPONENTS

Schumacher Elevator Company warrants all manufactured products to be free of defects in material and workmanship under 
normal and intended use conditions for a period of 1 year from the date of shipment from our factory.

During the term of the warranty, Schumacher Elevator Company will replace any product manufactured by Schumacher 
Elevator Company which is confirmed to be defective in material and/or workmanship by inspection at our factory.

This warranty excludes ordinary wear and tear, improper installation, improper use, vandalism, abuse, misuse, neglect, or any 
other causes beyond the control of Schumacher Elevator Company.

This warranty is voided if products are improperly exposed to the elements.  The warranty is also voided if the manufactured 
products are altered or modified in any manner, including modifications or alterations to the circuitry.  This warranty is also 
voided if improper wiring methods are used during installation of the manufactured products. 

THIS WARRANTY IS IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY OF 
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A SPECIFIC PURPOSE.  

Schumacher Elevator Company will not be liable for any contingent or consequential costs such as the cost of installation of 
replacement or repaired products, travel expense, or any other expense incurred in connection with the replacement or repair. 
 

Schumacher Elevator Company will not be liable for loss of profits, or any other indirect, consequential, or incidental damages. 

Products not manufactured by Schumacher Elevator Company are not covered by this warranty.  If Schumacher Elevator 
Company has purchased products from another manufacturer and resold such products to the Purchaser, the standard 
warranty provided by the third-party manufacturer, if any, will apply.  The Purchaser is encouraged to refer to the description 
of warranty terms offered by third-party manufacturers in their respective O&M Manual.   

This warranty replaces and supersedes any and all previous warranties offered by Schumacher Elevator Company. 

WARRANTY EXCHANGE – PACKAGES & COMPONENTS

To begin the warranty exchange process, the Purchaser should contact our inventory department to request troubleshooting 
assistance and to obtain a Return Material Authorization (RMA) number.  If Schumacher Elevator Company determines that an 
exchange is necessary, the replacement product will be sent via the appropriate shipping method along with the RMA number. 
 

The Purchaser will be responsible for the cost of shipping the product in question, freight prepaid, with the RMA number 
included, to our factory for evaluation within thirty (30) days of the RMA being issued.

If the product in question is not shipped to Schumacher Elevator within 30 days of Purchaser’s receipt of the replacement 
product, the Purchaser will be invoiced the full purchase price of the replacement product.  No credit will be offered if the 
product in question is not returned within 30 days.     

Upon receipt of the product in question, Schumacher Elevator will perform a full evaluation to determine whether the product 
has any defects in material or workmanship not caused by exclusions to Schumacher Elevator Company’s warranty.  If the 
evaluation determines that there are no defects in material or workmanship or existing defects are the result of a warranty 
exclusion, the Purchaser will be invoiced the full purchase price of the replacement product.  

When returning products to Schumacher Elevator Company, the Purchaser is encouraged to use a trackable shipping method.  
Schumacher Elevator Company is not responsible for products lost, stolen or damaged in the course of shipping the products 
to Schumacher Elevator Company.  



PROPOSAL 
PROJECT NAME: HARDIN COUNTY OFFICE BUILDING

Schumacher Elevator Company  |  One Schumacher Way, Denver, Iowa 50622  |  (319) 984-5676
http://www.schumacherelevator.com/

PROJECT ID: SCH000017-2051 DATE: 6/26/2020 

JOBSITE: BILL:Hardin County Office Building
1215 Edgington
Eldora, IA 50627

Hardin County Board of Supervisors
1215 Edgington
Eldora, IA 50627

Attn: Angela Silvey

RE:  A17.3 Code Required Elevator Upgrades – Original Compliance Date May 1, 2020

We propose to furnish labor and materials to complete the following required upgrades on your Montgomery Traction Passenger 
Elevator (State ID 1009):

* Install Pit Stop Switch [2.3.3]
* Install a platform guard (vertical face 21" min) [3.3.2]
* Install car top stop switch [3.10.4 (e)]
* Ensure car stop switch is either keyed or behind a locked cover [3.10.4 (t)]
* Install 2-way communication between car and outside hoistway. (elevators installed prior to 3/22/2002) [3.11.1 (a) (2)] NOTE: A 
working dedicated telephone line to the elevator controller in the elevator equipment room is to be supplied by the owner. 

We propose to hereby furnish labor and material - complete in accordance with the specifications outlined in this document for the 
sum of:

SIX THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED FORTY DOLLARS AND 0/100 $6,340.00

NOTICE:  This proposal will be withdrawn by Schumacher Elevator Company if not accepted within 60 days.  A binding contract 
agreement is required in order to commence work.  

If you have any questions, please contact me at (319) 406-1266 or email me at ted.duffy@schumacherelevator.com. 

Thank you,

Ted Duffy
Vice President Sales & Service

 FOR INTERNAL USE: The attached scope of work is reconstruction to real property in the state of Iowa.

http://www.schumacherelevator.com/


OBLIGATIONS OF OWNER
The following work is the responsibility of the Owner, and at no cost to Schumacher Elevator Company. All work to be 
performed per the latest revision of the applicable national code and/or local code.

GENERAL WORK
a. Provide all cutting of walls, floors or partitions, together with all repairs made necessary by such cutting or changes; 
b. Provide a staging and storage area close to the elevator hoistway;
c. Provide for removal of all spoils and debris accumulated during excavation from the lowest landing of the premises as required; 
d. Both legal hoistway and machine room must be maintained at a temperature range 55°F - 85°F;
e. Provide proper support and install inserts provided by Schumacher Elevator Company as shown on G-1 print of the approved 

drawings;
f. Provide a legal machine room of adequate size, properly ventilated, lighted and heated per Elevator Code; 
g. Provide routing for hydraulic and electrical lines;
h. Provide and install heat and smoke detectors as required; 
i. Complete all this work in such time as not to delay work of Schumacher Elevator Company; 
j. The price and installation schedule of Schumacher Elevator Company is based on these jobsite conditions existing at the beginning 

and during installation of the elevator equipment;
k. Complete all work prior to state inspection, if reinspection is required, the cost will be shared by the parties involved.
l. Provide a fire extinguisher in the machine room or in a location convenient to the machine space.
m. In accordance with code, if sprinklers are installed in hoistway, machine room, control space or machine space, provide means to 

automatically disconnect the main line power supply of the affected elevator and any other power supplies used to move the 
elevator upon the application of water is required (Not applicable in the state of Minnesota);

HOISTWAY & PIT WORK
n. Provide a legal hoistway of proper size with adequate pit depth, overhead height and be constructed to withstand forces and loads 

resulting from the use of the elevator;
o. Provide code compliant means to extract water from the pit;
p. Provide a hoisting beam as required at top of hoistway for digging and hoisting; 
q. Provide all necessary sill supports; 
r. Fill in around jack hole in pit, build in around door frames and grout under sills, as required by elevator contractor; 
s. Provide all cutting of walls, floors or partitions, together with all repairs made necessary by such cutting or changes; 
t. Provide all painting including hoistway doors and frames furnished with prime finish; 
u. Provide means to guard and protect the hoistway during the time the elevator is being installed;
v. Provide sump pump and sump pit in elevator hoistway floor; 

ELECTRICAL WORK
w. Electrical disconnects, one for three phase and several single-phase power supplies, with properly sized wires, as require by the 

manufacturer;
x. Provide standby power unit and means for starting it, that will deliver enough regulated power to the elevator disconnect switches 

to operate one or more elevators at a time at full-rated speed;
y. Provide electrical power to machine room and connect to controller terminals, with an intervening fused disconnect properly 

located in machine room, including shunt trip breakers, if required; 
z. Provide a transfer switch for each feeder for switching from normal power to standby power and a contact on each transfer switch 

closed on normal power supply with two wires from this contact to one elevator controller;
aa. Provide means for absorbing power regenerated by the elevator system when running with overhauling loads such as full load 

down;
bb. Provide any required emergency power of adequate size to include switch gear and preconditioning signals, which may be required;
cc. Provide without charge, adequate power for excavation and tools during construction, starting, testing, and adjusting of equipment; 

dd. Provide a separate 110-volt AC, 15-amp circuit fused disconnect terminated at controller; 
ee. Provide GFI outlet and guarded light and switch; 
ff. Provide means to guard and protect the hoistway during the time the elevator is being installed;
gg. Hoistway lighting. If the controller for an elevator is being replaced, permanent lighting shall be installed in the hoistway of the 

elevator. Three-way switches to control the hoistway lighting shall be installed at the pit access door and the top landing access 
door. The lighting shall be sufficient to provide 10 foot- candles of light to the center of the elevator path measured when the car 
top lights are off. Engineering calculations that prove 10 foot- candles of light are provided to the center of the elevator path may 
be substituted for light meter measurements under circumstances such as a glass back car where use of a light meter is not practical. 
 - Iowa Chapter 73.8 (8);

*Fire control panel by others- per National Fire Alarm Code 6.15.3.2

The owner agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Schumacher Elevator Company against all claims, damages, losses, 
expenses, fines, and penalties, including but not limited to attorneys’ and/or consultants fees, arising out of or resulting 
from the failure of the owner to carry out any obligations of the owner outlined in the foregoing agreement.



CONTRACT ID: SA172051

CONTRACT AGREEMENT  |  PAGE 1 OF 2

SECTION 1 – PAYMENT TERMS 

MILESTONE DESCRIPTION PERCENTAGE VALUE TIMING

Initial Payment Reserves spot on master 
schedule

25% Billed upon execution of 
Agreement.  Payment due upon 
receipt.

Final Payment Completion of work Percentage of 
Completion

Billed upon completion of work. 
Payment due Net 30 days.

 If payment is not made within 30 days of invoicing, the Supplier shall be relieved of the obligation to honor its warranty.
 Purchaser agrees to pay interest at the rate of 1.5% per month or 18% APR on all past due account balances.
 Purchaser agrees to pay all collection costs incurred to collect past due account balances. Collection costs include all 

reasonable attorney fees, collection agency fees, court costs, and litigation expenses.
 Purchaser agrees that should legal action become necessary to enforce collection of past due account balances, 

jurisdiction and venue shall be in the Iowa district court in Bremer County, Iowa.
 Any tax or other governmental charge imposed upon the sale of the goods shall be paid by Purchaser, and Purchaser’s 

failure to pay any applicable tax shall be a breach of this entire agreement. 

SECTION 2 – GENERAL TERMS & CONDITIONS
1. Supplier will complete the scope of work during regular working hours of 6:00 A.M. to 5:00 P.M. (not to exceed 8 hours 

per day for new construction and 10 hours per day for alteration of existing elevators and in either case not to exceed 
40 hours in a work week) during regular working days of Monday to Friday, excluding holidays.   Expedited work schedules 
can be arranged between the Supplier and the Purchaser with a fully executed change order specifying the additional 
compensation to be paid for the expedited work.

2. All work performed outside of the scope of this Agreement will be billed to Purchaser at a single worker rate of $200 per 
man hour for regular time (6am to 5 pm) and $375 per man hour for overtime (after 5pm and before 6am or over 8 hours 
per day or 40 hours in a workweek), plus any expenses.  A team hour (a mechanic and an apprentice) will be billed at a 
rate of $350 per hour for regular time and $675 per hour for overtime, plus any expenses.  Purchaser must enter into a 
change order describing the additional work and confirming the applicable rate before Supplier is required to perform 
work outside the scope of this Agreement. 

3. The terms of this Agreement shall not be supplemented or amended by Purchaser’s bid documents or a contract provided 
by Purchaser.  This Agreement sets forth the entire agreement between the parties.  If the Purchaser accepts the terms 
of this Agreement by issuing a purchase order, Supplier shall not be bound by any of the terms in the purchase order, 
and none of the terms in the purchase order shall have the effect of amending, modifying or nullifying any of the terms 
of this Agreement.  In the event of a conflict between the terms of Purchaser’s purchase order and this Agreement, the 
terms of this Agreement shall govern the contractual relationship between Supplier and Purchaser. 

4. Neither party shall be liable to the other party hereunder for special, indirect, consequential, exemplary or incidental 
damages.   

5. Supplier will secure and maintain minimum insurance coverage to protect against claims for bodily injury or death, or for 
damage to property, which may arise out of the operations by the Supplier or by anyone employed by them.  Certificates 
of Workers’ Compensation, Employer’s Liability, and Commercial General Liability, Commercial Automobile Liability, and 
Umbrella/Excess Liability will be furnished to the Purchaser upon request.  

6. If Purchaser terminates or cancels this Agreement, Purchaser shall be liable for all costs incurred by Supplier through the 
date of Supplier’s receipt of Purchaser’s written notice of cancellation.  Purchaser agrees to pay any cancellation fees 
within ten (10) days of the cancellation date. 

SECTION 3 – WARRANTY
There are two components to Supplier’s warranty.  Supplier warrants and guarantees it shall perform its labor in a skillful 
manner.   Supplier also provides a limited warranty regarding the products manufactured by Supplier.



CONTRACT ID: SA172051

CONTRACT AGREEMENT  |  PAGE 2 OF 2

Supplier’s labor (workmanship) is guaranteed for a period of (1) year from the date the work is completed.  The workmanship 
warranty excludes ordinary wear and tear, improper use, vandalism, abuse, misuse, neglect, or any other causes beyond 
Supplier’s control.  THIS EXPRESS LIMITED WARRANTY WITH RESPECT TO WORKMANSHIP IS IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER 
WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING ANY WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A SPECIFIC 
PURPOSE.

The terms of Supplier’s limited warranty with respect to products manufactured by Supplier are set forth in the “Standard 
Warranty-Packages & Components” attached as EXHIBIT A.

SECTION 4 – INDEMNIFICATION
Supplier shall indemnify and hold Purchaser harmless from and against all claims, damages, losses and expenses arising out of 
or resulting from any negligent act or omission of Supplier, Supplier's Contractors, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by 
Supplier or Supplier's Contractors.  Supplier shall not be obligated to indemnify or hold Purchaser harmless for any claims, 
damages, losses and expenses arising out of or caused in whole or in part by any act or omission of Purchaser, Purchaser's 
other contractors and Contractors, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by or supervised by Purchaser or Purchaser's 
other contractors or Contractors.

SECTION 5 – RISK OF LOSS
Risk of loss shall pass to Purchaser as soon as the materials and equipment are delivered to the jobsite. Purchaser shall pay all 
costs of insurance from the time that risk of loss passes to Purchaser.

SECTION 6 – FORCE MAJEURE
Supplier shall not be responsible for any delivery or failure to make delivery of all or any part of the goods purchased under 
this agreement due to federal, state, or municipal action, statute, ordinance, or regulation, strike or other labor trouble, acts 
of God or natural disasters, riot or other civil disturbance, inability to secure raw materials or supplies, or, without limiting the 
foregoing, by any other cause, contingency, or circumstance within or without the United States not subject to Supplier’s 
control which prevents or hinders the manufacture or delivery of the goods sold hereunder. The provisions of this paragraph 
shall not be limited by any provision in which time is made of the essence.

CONTRACT ACCEPTANCE

Purchaser: {{*Cmpy_es_:signer1:company       }} Supplier: {{*Cmpy2_es_:signer2:company      }}

Signature: {{ *Sig1_es_:signer1:signature                            }} Signature: {{ *Sig2_es_:signer2:signature                   }}
Printed Name: {{*N1_es_:signer1:fullname             }} Printed Name: {{*N2_es_:signer2:fullname                }}

Title: {{*Ttl1_es_:signer1:title                    }} Title: {{*Ttl2_es_:signer2:title                      }}

Date Signed: {{*Dte1_es_:signer1:date                 }} Date Signed: {{*Dte2_es_:signer2:date                   }}

DO YOU NEED TO ISSUE A PURCHASE ORDER? {{ *PO_es_:signer1:dropdown(options="Yes, No”) }} P.O. # {{ *PON_es_:signer1:string:showif (PO="Yes")                                                                                                                }}

{{ PurchaseOrder_es_:signer1:attachment:label(“Purchase Order (Optional)”):align(center):showif(PO=“Yes”) }}



EXHIBIT A  |  PAGE 1 OF 1

EXHIBIT A
STANDARD WARRANTY – PACKAGES & COMPONENTS

Schumacher Elevator Company warrants all manufactured products to be free of defects in material and workmanship under 
normal and intended use conditions for a period of 1 year from the date of shipment from our factory.

During the term of the warranty, Schumacher Elevator Company will replace any product manufactured by Schumacher 
Elevator Company which is confirmed to be defective in material and/or workmanship by inspection at our factory.

This warranty excludes ordinary wear and tear, improper installation, improper use, vandalism, abuse, misuse, neglect, or any 
other causes beyond the control of Schumacher Elevator Company.

This warranty is voided if products are improperly exposed to the elements.  The warranty is also voided if the manufactured 
products are altered or modified in any manner, including modifications or alterations to the circuitry.  This warranty is also 
voided if improper wiring methods are used during installation of the manufactured products. 

THIS WARRANTY IS IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY OF 
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A SPECIFIC PURPOSE.  

Schumacher Elevator Company will not be liable for any contingent or consequential costs such as the cost of installation of 
replacement or repaired products, travel expense, or any other expense incurred in connection with the replacement or repair. 
 

Schumacher Elevator Company will not be liable for loss of profits, or any other indirect, consequential, or incidental damages. 

Products not manufactured by Schumacher Elevator Company are not covered by this warranty.  If Schumacher Elevator 
Company has purchased products from another manufacturer and resold such products to the Purchaser, the standard 
warranty provided by the third-party manufacturer, if any, will apply.  The Purchaser is encouraged to refer to the description 
of warranty terms offered by third-party manufacturers in their respective O&M Manual.   

This warranty replaces and supersedes any and all previous warranties offered by Schumacher Elevator Company. 

WARRANTY EXCHANGE – PACKAGES & COMPONENTS

To begin the warranty exchange process, the Purchaser should contact our inventory department to request troubleshooting 
assistance and to obtain a Return Material Authorization (RMA) number.  If Schumacher Elevator Company determines that an 
exchange is necessary, the replacement product will be sent via the appropriate shipping method along with the RMA number. 
 

The Purchaser will be responsible for the cost of shipping the product in question, freight prepaid, with the RMA number 
included, to our factory for evaluation within thirty (30) days of the RMA being issued.

If the product in question is not shipped to Schumacher Elevator within 30 days of Purchaser’s receipt of the replacement 
product, the Purchaser will be invoiced the full purchase price of the replacement product.  No credit will be offered if the 
product in question is not returned within 30 days.     

Upon receipt of the product in question, Schumacher Elevator will perform a full evaluation to determine whether the product 
has any defects in material or workmanship not caused by exclusions to Schumacher Elevator Company’s warranty.  If the 
evaluation determines that there are no defects in material or workmanship or existing defects are the result of a warranty 
exclusion, the Purchaser will be invoiced the full purchase price of the replacement product.  

When returning products to Schumacher Elevator Company, the Purchaser is encouraged to use a trackable shipping method.  
Schumacher Elevator Company is not responsible for products lost, stolen or damaged in the course of shipping the products 
to Schumacher Elevator Company.  



 

OFFICE OF AUDITOR OF STATE  
STATE OF IOWA 

State Capitol Building 
Des Moines, Iowa 50319-0006 

Telephone (515) 281-5834      Facsimile (515) 281-6518 

Rob Sand 
Auditor of State 

 

 
 NEWS RELEASE  
  Contact:  Marlys Gaston 

FOR RELEASE June 15, 2020 515/281-5834 

Auditor of State Rob Sand today released an audit report on the Central Iowa Juvenile 

Detention Center in Eldora, Iowa. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS: 

The Center had total receipts $10,822,876 for the year ended June 30, 2019, a 15.7% 

increase over the prior year.  Disbursements for the year ended June 30, 2019 totaled 

$10,836,538, a 15.2% increase over the prior year.  The significant increase in receipts is due 

primarily to increases in child welfare service fees and line of credit proceeds.  The significant 

increase in disbursements is due primarily to an increase in community-based services 

salaries and benefits disbursements.  The community-based services program added more 

fiscal services and the area served increased. 

AUDIT FINDINGS: 

Sand reported two findings related to the receipt and disbursement of taxpayer funds.  They 

are found on page 27 of this report.  The findings address noncompliance with Chapter 

28E.6(3) of the Code of Iowa pertaining to publication of Board minutes and the Center 

securing loan agreements with government assets.  Sand provided the Center with 

recommendations to address each of the findings. 

The two findings discussed above are repeated from the prior year.  The Central Iowa Juvenile 

Detention Center Board has a fiduciary responsibility to provide oversight of the Center’s 

operations and financial transactions.  Oversight is typically defined as the “watchful and 

responsible care” a governing body exercises in its fiduciary capacity.    

A copy of the audit report is available for review on the Auditor of State’s web site at 

https://auditor.iowa.gov/reports/audit-reports/. 

# # # 

https://auditor.iowa.gov/reports/audit-reports/


 

1914-2341-B00F 

 

CENTRAL IOWA JUVENILE DETENTION CENTER 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORTS 
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

AND OTHER INFORMATION 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 

 
JUNE 30, 2019 



 

 

Central Iowa Juvenile Detention Center



 

OFFICE OF AUDITOR OF STATE  
STATE OF IOWA 

State Capitol Building 
Des Moines, Iowa 50319-0006 

Telephone (515) 281-5834      Facsimile (515) 281-6518 

Rob Sand 
Auditor of State 

 

 

 

March 15, 2020 

Officials of the Central Iowa Juvenile Detention Center 
Eldora, Iowa 

Dear Board Members: 

I am pleased to submit to you the financial and compliance audit report for the Central Iowa 
Juvenile Detention Center for the year ended June 30, 2019.  The audit was performed pursuant 
to Chapter 11.6 of the Code of Iowa and in accordance with U.S. auditing standards and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards. 

I appreciate the cooperation and courtesy extended by the officials and employees of the Central 
Iowa Juvenile Detention Center throughout the audit.  If I or this office can be of any further 
assistance, please contact me or my staff at 515-281-5834.   

 Sincerely, 

 Rob Sand 
 Auditor of State 

 



 

2 

Table of Contents 

  Page 

Officials  3 

Independent Auditor’s Report  4-5 

Basic Financial Statement: Exhibit 

Statement of Cash Receipts, Disbursements and Changes  
in Cash Balance A 9 

Notes to Financial Statement  10-16 

Other Information: 

Schedule of the Center’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability  19 
Schedule of Center Contributions  20-21 
Notes to Other Information – Pension Liability  23 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial 
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an 
Audit of Financial Statement Performed in Accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards 24-25 

Schedule of Findings  26-27 

Staff  28 

 

 



 

3 

Central Iowa Juvenile Detention Center 
 

Officials 

Name Title Representing 

Dave Thompson Chair Marshall County 

Trevor White 1st Vice-Chair Poweshiek County 

Lance Granzow 2nd Vice-Chair Hardin County 

Dan Campidilli Ex-Officio Hamilton County 

Mark Waits Member Appanoose County 
Rick Primmer Member Benton County 
Bill Zinnel Member Boone County 
Don Shonka Member Buchanan County 
Paul Merten Member Buena Vista County 
Mike Cooper Member Calhoun County 
Cecil Blum Member Crawford County 
Dave Baker Member Dubuque County 
Jeff Quastad Member Emmet County 
Doug Kamm Member Floyd County 
Gary McVicker Member Franklin County 
Peter Bardole Member Greene County 
Ron Sweers Member Hancock County 
Bruce Reimers Member Humboldt County 
John Gahring Member Iowa County 
Doug Cupples Member Jasper County 
Roger Tjarks Member Kossuth County 
Larry Davis Member Lucas County 
Mark Doland Member Mahaska County 
Roger Faulstick Member Palo Alto County 
Martin Chitty Member Story County 
Larry Vest Member Tama County 
Bob Thode Member Webster County 
Mike Stensrud Member Winnebago County 
Mark Smeby  Member Worth County 
Rick Rasmussen Member Wright County 

Tony Reed Executive Director 

Justin Cornish Regulatory Director 

Kassie Ruth Fiscal Director 

 



 

OFFICE OF AUDITOR OF STATE  
STATE OF IOWA 

State Capitol Building 
Des Moines, Iowa 50319-0004 

Telephone (515) 281-5834      Facsimile (515) 281-6518 

Rob Sand 
Auditor of State 

 

 

4 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Members of the Central Iowa Juvenile Detention Center: 

Report on the Financial Statement 

We have audited the financial statement of the Central Iowa Juvenile Detention Center as of and 
for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related Notes to Financial Statement. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statement 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statement in 
accordance with the cash basis of accounting described in Note 1.  This includes determining the 
cash basis of accounting is an acceptable basis for the preparation of the financial statement in 
the circumstances.  This includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of a financial statement that is free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statement based on our audit.  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by 
the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statement is free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statement.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statement, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the Center’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statement in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Center’s internal 
control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statement. 

We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 



 

5 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statement referred to above presents fairly, in all material respects, 
the cash basis financial position of the Central Iowa Juvenile Detention Center as of June 30, 
2019, and the changes in its cash basis financial position for the year then ended in accordance 
with the basis of accounting described in Note 1. 

Basis of Accounting 

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statement was prepared on the basis of cash receipts and 
disbursements, which is a basis of accounting other than U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles.  Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Other Matters 

Other Information 

The other information, the Schedule of the Center’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension 
Liability and the Schedule of Center Contributions on pages 19 through 23 has not been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statement and, 
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
March 15, 2020 on our consideration of the Central Iowa Juvenile Detention Center’s internal 
control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and 
the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Central Iowa Juvenile Detention Center’s 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 
 
 

  Marlys K. Gaston, CPA 
  Deputy Auditor of State 

March 15, 2020 

 



 

6 

Central Iowa Juvenile Detention Center



 

7 

 

Financial Statement 



 

8 

Central Iowa Juvenile Detention Center



Exhibit A 

9 

Central Iowa Juvenile Detention Center 
 

Statement of Cash Receipts, Disbursements 
and Changes in Cash Balance 

 
As of and for the year ended June 30, 2019 

 
Operating receipts:

Detention care fees 1,219,135$   
State programs:

Detention care 721,816$     
School lunch 64,498         786,314       

Child welfare service and juvenile justice fees 6,308,510    
Transportation services 975,320       
Miscellaneous 206,154       

 Total operating receipts 9,495,433    
Operating disbursements:

Salaries:
Detention care 2,156,583    
Community based services 2,744,445    4,901,028    

Employee benefits:
Detention care 987,681       
Community based services 997,909       1,985,590    

Travel:
Detention care 111,017       
Community based services 250,823       361,840       

Resident meals 119,282       
Building repairs 15,121         
Utilities 107,747       
Equipment 13,958         
Vehicle purchase 112,736       
Vehicle maintenance 168,464       
Professional fees 170,956       
Insurance 128,315       
Supplies 106,026       
Medical 167,352       
Staff development 20,348         
Information services 64,619         
Community based services 875,082       

 Total operating disbursements 9,318,464    

Excess of operating receipts over operating disbursements 176,969       

Non-operating receipts (disbursements):
Interest on investments 466              
Line of credit proceeds 1,326,977    
Debt service:

Principal (1,444,510)    
Interest (73,564)        (1,518,074)    

Net non-operating receipts (disbursements) (190,631)      

Change in cash balance (13,662)        

Cash balance beginning of year 188,980       

Cash balance end of year 175,318$     

Cash Basis Fund Balance

Unrestricted 175,318$     

See notes to financial statement.
 



Central Iowa Juvenile Detention Center 
 

Notes to Financial Statement 
 

June 30, 2019 

10 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The Central Iowa Juvenile Detention Center was formed in 1993 pursuant to Chapter 28E 
of the Code of Iowa.  The Center is a voluntary joint undertaking of the Boards of 
Supervisors of the counties of Appanoose, Benton, Boone, Buchanan, Buena Vista, 
Calhoun, Crawford, Dubuque, Emmet, Floyd, Franklin, Greene, Hamilton, Hancock, 
Hardin, Humboldt, Iowa, Jasper, Kossuth, Lucas, Mahaska, Marshall, Palo Alto, 
Poweshiek, Story, Tama, Webster, Winnebago, Worth and Wright, Iowa.  The primary 
purpose of this detention facility is to provide a physically secure, emotionally stable and 
safe environment in which juveniles can await court disposition. 

A. Reporting Entity 

For financial reporting purposes, the Central Iowa Juvenile Detention Center has 
included all funds, organizations, agencies, boards, commissions and authorities.  The 
Center has also considered all potential component units for which it is financially 
accountable and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their 
relationship with the Center are such that exclusion would cause the Center’s 
financial statement to be misleading or incomplete.  The Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board has set forth criteria to be considered in determining financial 
accountability.  These criteria include appointing a voting majority of an organization’s 
governing body and (1) the ability of the Center to impose its will on that organization 
or (2) the potential for the organization to provide specific benefits to or impose 
specific financial burdens on the Center.  The Center has no component units which 
meet the Governmental Accounting Standards Board criteria. 

B. Basis of Presentation 

The accounts of the Center are organized as an Enterprise Fund.  Enterprise Funds 
are utilized to finance and account for the acquisition, operation and maintenance of 
governmental facilities and services supported by user charges. 

Enterprise Funds distinguish operating receipts and disbursements from non-
operating items.  Operating receipts and disbursements generally result from 
providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with an 
Enterprise Fund’s principal ongoing operations.  All receipts and disbursements not 
meeting this definition are reported as non-operating receipts and disbursements. 

C. Basis of Accounting 

The Center maintains its financial records on the basis of cash receipts and 
disbursements and the financial statement of the Center is prepared on that basis.  
The cash basis of accounting does not give effect to accounts receivable, accounts 
payable and accrued items.  Accordingly, the financial statement does not present the 
financial position and results of operations of the Center in accordance with U.S. 
generally accepted accounting principles. 



 

11 

(2) Cash and Investments 

The Center’s deposits in banks at June 30, 2019 were entirely covered by federal 
depository insurance or by the State Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C of the 
Code of Iowa.  This chapter provides for additional assessments against the depositories to 
ensure there will be no loss of public funds. 

The Center is authorized by statute to invest public funds in obligations of the United 
States government, its agencies and instrumentalities; certificates of deposit or other 
evidences of deposit at federally insured depository institutions approved by the Center; 
prime eligible bankers acceptances; certain high rated commercial paper; perfected 
repurchase agreements; certain registered open-end management investment companies; 
certain joint investment trusts; and warrants or improvement certificates of a drainage 
district. 

The Center had no investments meeting the disclosure requirements of Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 72. 

(3) Short-Term and Long-Term Liabilities 

A summary of changes in short-term and long-term liabilities and interest paid for the year 
ended June 30, 2019 is as follows: 

Line of Building
Credit Loan Total 

Balance beginning of year 183,687$      1,858,842     2,042,529   
Increases 1,326,977     -                   1,326,977   
Decreases 760,664        683,846        1,444,510   

Balance end of year 750,000$      1,174,996     1,924,996   

Interest paid during the year 18,502$        55,062          73,564        

 
Line of Credit 

On September 13, 2016, the Center entered into a loan agreement with a local bank to 
borrow up to $750,000 for the payment of operating expenses.  The loan agreement is 
evidenced by a promissory note, with a maturity date of September 10, 2017 and a 
variable interest rate equal to the Bank Prime Loan Rate as published in the Federal 
Reserve Statistical Bulletin (the Index).  The variable interest rate is not to be less than 
4.0% per annum or more than the lesser of 6.5% per annum or the maximum rate allowed 
by applicable law.  The line of credit is to be paid when funds are received from operations.  
On December 8, 2017, the loan agreement was extended to September 1, 2018 with an 
interest rate of 4.75% per annum until maturity.  The loan agreement was extended again 
on October 9, 2018 to March 15, 2019 with an interest rate of 5.75% per annum until 
maturity.  On April 10, 2019 the Center entered into a new loan agreement for $750,000 
with a maturity date of April 1, 2020 for the purpose of repaying the April 1, 2020 loan 
agreement extension.  The variable interest rate is not to be less than 5.75% per annum or 
more than the lesser of 8.75% per annum or the maximum rate allowed by applicable law.  
On April 11, 2019 the Center transferred the remaining balance of the loan agreement to 
the new loan agreement and at June 30, 2019, the outstanding balance was $750,000.  In 
fiscal year 2019, $1,326,977 was drawn on the loan agreements and $760,664 was repaid. 

The loan agreement includes provisions that in the event of a default the total amount due 
will continue to accrue interest and the entire unpaid principal balance and accrued 
interest are due immediately.  The Center has drawn the entire line of credit. 



 

12 

According to the loan agreement, the loan is secured by real estate collateral belonging to 
the Center. 

Construction and Building Loans 

On September 3, 2017, the Center entered into a loan agreement for $1,900,621 with a 
maturity date of October 20, 2037.  The initial interest rate on the loan is 4.0% for the first 
5 years and thereafter a variable interest rate subject to the monthly average of the weekly 
average yield on U.S. Treasury securities adjusted to a constant maturity of one year 
rounded to the nearest 0.001 (the Index).  The variable interest rate is not to be less than 
4.0% per annum or more than the lesser of 9.0% per annum or the maximum rate allowed 
by applicable law.  In fiscal year 2019, $683,846 was repaid on the loan.   

Annual debt service requirements to maturity under the loan agreement are as follows: 

Year
Ending Interest

June 30, Rates Principal Interest Total

2020   4.00% 93,613$         45,296         138,909        
2021   4.00   97,427           41,482         138,909        
2022   4.00   101,396         37,513         138,909        
2023  4.00-4.125            105,527         33,382         138,909        
2024 4.125   109,826         29,082         138,908        
2025-2029 4.125   667,207         74,940         742,147        

   Total 1,174,996$    261,695        1,436,691     

 
According to the loan agreements, the loan is secured by real estate collateral belonging to 
the Center. 

(4) Pension Plan 

Plan Description – IPERS membership is mandatory for employees of the Center, except for 
those covered by another retirement system.  Employees of the Center are provided with 
pensions through a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan 
administered by the Iowa Public Employees’ Retirement System (IPERS).  IPERS issues a 
stand-alone financial report which is available to the public by mail at PO Box 9117, 
Des Moines, Iowa 50306-9117 or at www.ipers.org. 

IPERS benefits are established under Iowa Code Chapter 97B and the administrative rules 
thereunder.  Chapter 97B and the administrative rules are the official plan documents.  
The following brief description is provided for general informational purposes only.  Refer 
to the plan documents for more information. 

Pension Benefits – A Regular member may retire at normal retirement age and receive 
monthly benefits without an early-retirement reduction.  Normal retirement age is age 65, 
any time after reaching age 62 with 20 or more years of covered employment or when the 
member’s years of service plus the member’s age at the last birthday equals or exceeds 88, 
whichever comes first.  These qualifications must be met on the member’s first month of 
entitlement to benefits.  Members cannot begin receiving retirement benefits before age 55. 
The formula used to calculate a Regular member’s monthly IPERS benefit includes: 

• A multiplier based on years of service. 
• The member’s highest five-year average salary, except members with service 

before June 30, 2012 will use the highest three-year average salary as of that 
date if it is greater than the highest five-year average salary. 



 

13 

If a member retires before normal retirement age, the member’s monthly retirement benefit 
will be permanently reduced by an early-retirement reduction.  The early-retirement 
reduction is calculated differently for service earned before and after July 1, 2012.  For 
service earned before July 1, 2012, the reduction is 0.25% for each month the member 
receives benefits before the member’s earliest normal retirement age.  For service earned 
on or after July 1, 2012, the reduction is 0.50% for each month the member receives 
benefits before age 65. 

Generally, once a member selects a benefit option, a monthly benefit is calculated and 
remains the same for the rest of the member’s lifetime.  However, to combat the effects of 
inflation, retirees who began receiving benefits prior to July 1990 receive a guaranteed 
dividend with their regular November benefit payments. 

Disability and Death Benefits – A vested member who is awarded federal Social Security 
disability or Railroad Retirement disability benefits is eligible to claim IPERS benefits 
regardless of age.  Disability benefits are not reduced for early retirement.  If a member 
dies before retirement, the member’s beneficiary will receive a lifetime annuity or a lump-
sum payment equal to the present actuarial value of the member’s accrued benefit or 
calculated with a set formula, whichever is greater.  When a member dies after retirement, 
death benefits depend on the benefit option the member selected at retirement. 

Contributions – Contribution rates are established by IPERS following the annual actuarial 
valuation which applies IPERS’ Contribution Rate Funding Policy and Actuarial 
Amortization Method.  State statute limits the amount rates can increase or decrease each 
year to 1 percentage point.  IPERS Contribution Rate Funding Policy requires the actuarial 
contribution rate be determined using the “entry age normal” actuarial cost method and 
the actuarial assumptions and methods approved by the IPERS Investment Board.  The 
actuarial contribution rate covers normal cost plus the unfunded actuarial liability 
payment based on a 30-year amortization period.  The payment to amortize the unfunded 
actuarial liability is determined as a level percentage of payroll based on the Actuarial 
Amortization Method adopted by the Investment Board. 

In fiscal year 2019, pursuant to the required rate, Regular members contributed 6.29% of 
covered payroll and the Center contributed 9.44% of covered payroll, for a total rate of 
15.73%. 

The Center’s contributions to IPERS for the year ended June 30, 2019 totaled $411,506. 

Net Pension Liability, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions – At June 30, 2019, the Center had a liability of 
$3,506,466 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability.  The net pension liability 
was measured as of June 30, 2018 and the total pension liability used to calculate the net 
pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.  The Center’s 
proportion of the net pension liability was based on the Center’s share of contributions to 
IPERS relative to the contributions of all IPERS participating employers.  At June 30, 
2018, the Center’s proportion was 0.055409%, which was an increase of 0.008448% over 
its proportion measured as of June 30, 2017.   

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the Center’s pension expense, deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources totaled $475,097, $928,007 and $584,161, 
respectively. 

There were no non-employer contributing entities to IPERS. 



 

14 

Actuarial Assumptions – The total pension liability in the June 30, 2018 actuarial 
valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods 
included in the measurement: 

Rate of inflation
(effective June 30, 2017) 2.60% per annum.

Rates of salary increase 3.25 to 16.25% average, including inflation.
(effective June 30, 2017) Rates vary by membership group.

Long-term investment rate of return 7.00% compounded annually, net of investment 
(effective June 30, 2017) expense, including inflation.

Wage growth 3.25% per annum, based on 2.60% inflation
(effective June 30, 2017) and 0.65% real wage inflation.

 
The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on the results 
of an economic assumption study dated March 24, 2017 and a demographic assumption 
study dated June 28, 2018. 

Mortality rates used in the 2018 valuation were based on the RP-2014 Employee and 
Healthy Annuitant Tables with MP-2017 generational adjustments. 

The long-term expected rate of return on IPERS’ investments was determined using a 
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates 
(expected returns, net of investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major 
asset class.  These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return 
by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation 
percentage and by adding expected inflation.  The target allocation and best estimates of 
arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following 
table: 

Asset Long-Term Expected
Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return

Domestic equity    22.0% 6.01%
International equity    15.0   6.48   
Global smart beta equity     3.0  6.23   
Core plus fixed income 27.0 1.97   
Public credit    3.5  3.93   
Public real assets    7.0  2.91  
Cash    1.0  (0.25)   
Private equity    11.0   10.81     
Private real assets  7.5 4.14   
Private credit    3.0  3.11   

    Total 100.0%  

 
Discount Rate – The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00%.  
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed employee 
contributions will be made at the contractually required rate and contributions from the 
Center will be made at contractually required rates, actuarially determined.  Based on 
those assumptions, IPERS’ fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all 
projected future benefit payments to current active and inactive employees.  Therefore, the 
long-term expected rate of return on IPERS’ investments was applied to all periods of 
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 



 

15 

Sensitivity of the Center’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in 
the Discount Rate – The following presents the Center’s proportionate share of the net 
pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.00%, as well as what the Center’s 
proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate 1% lower (6.00%) or 1% higher (8.00%) than the current rate. 

1% Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
(6.00% ) (7.00% ) (8.00% )

Center's proportionate share of
the net pension liability 5,951,177$     3,506,466      1,455,716      

 
IPERS’ Fiduciary Net Position – Detailed information about IPERS’ fiduciary net position is 
available in the separately issued IPERS financial report which is available on IPERS’ 
website at www.ipers.org. 

(5) Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) 

Plan Description – The Center operates a single-employer benefit plan which provides 
medical and prescription drug benefits for employees, retirees and their spouses.  Group 
insurance benefits are established under Iowa Code Chapter 509A.13.  The Center 
currently finances the benefit plan on a pay-as-you-go basis. The most recent active 
member monthly premiums for health coverage for the Center and the plan members 
range from $353 for single coverage to $1,550 for family coverage. The most recent active 
member monthly premiums for dental coverage for the Center and the plan members 
range from $26 for single coverage to $79 for family coverage. For the year ended June 30, 
2019, the Center contributed $213,255 and plan member eligible for benefits contributed 
$148,475 to the plan.  At June 30, 2019, no assets have been accumulated in a trust that 
meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75.  

OPEB Benefits – Individuals who are employed by Central Iowa Juvenile Detention Center 
and are eligible to participate in the group health plan are eligible to continue healthcare 
benefits upon retirement.  Retirees under age 65 pay the same premium for the medical, 
prescription drug and dental benefits as active employees, which results in an implicit rate 
subsidy. 

Retired participants must be age 55 or older at retirement, with the exception of special 
service participants who must be age 50 with 22 years of service.  At June 30, 2019, there 
were 35 active employees covered by the benefit terms and no inactive employees or 
beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments. 

(6) Risk Management 

The Center is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft, damage to and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.  
These risks are covered by the purchase of commercial insurance.  The Center assumes 
liability for any deductibles and claims in excess of coverage limitations.  Settled claims 
from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three 
fiscal years. 



 

16 

(7) Compensated Absences 

Center employees accumulate an established amount of earned personal time off based on 
the number of years of service for subsequent use or for payment upon termination, 
resignation, retirement or death.  These accumulations are not recognized as 
disbursements by the Center until used or paid.  The Center’s approximate liability to 
employees for earned personal time off at June 30, 2019 is $297,000.  This liability has 
been computed based on rates of pay in effect at June 30, 2019.   

 

 



 

17 

Other Information



 

18 

Central Iowa Juvenile Detention Center



 

19 

Central Iowa Juvenile Detention Center 
 

Schedule of the Center’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 

Iowa Public Employees’ Retirement System 
For the Last Five Years* 

(In Thousands) 

Other Information 

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Center's proportion of the net pension
liability 0.055409% 0.046961% 0.045978% 0.040556% 0.038800%

Center's proportionate share of the net
pension liability 3,506$         3,128          2,894          2,004          1,539          

Center's covered payroll 4,165$         3,505          3,299          2,778          2,531          

Center's proportionate share of the net
pension liability as a percentage
of its covered payroll 84.18% 89.24% 87.72% 72.14% 60.81%

IPERS' net position as a percentage of 
the total pension liability 83.62% 82.21% 81.82% 85.19% 87.61%

* In accordance with GASB Statement No. 68, the amounts presented for each fiscal
year were determined as of June 30 of the preceding fiscal year.

See accompanying independent auditor's report.
 

 



 

20 

Central Iowa Juvenile Detention Center 
 

Schedule of Center Contributions 
 

Iowa Public Employees’ Retirement System 
For the Last Ten Years 

(In Thousands)  

Other Information 

2019 2018 2017 2016

Statutorily required contribution 412$         372           313           295           

Contributions in relation to the 
statutorily required contribution (412)          (372)          (313)          (295)          

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$              -                -                -                

Center's covered payroll 4,428$       4,165        3,505        3,299        

Contributions as a percentage of
covered payroll 9.44% 8.93% 8.93% 8.93%

See accompanying independent auditor's report.
 

 



 

21 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

248           226           141           170           114           82             

(248)          (226)          (141)          (170)          (114)          (82)            

-                -                -                -                -                -                

2,778        2,531        1,626        2,107        1,640        1,233        

8.93% 8.93% 8.67% 8.07% 6.95% 6.65%

 



 

22 

Central Iowa Juvenile Detention Center



Central Iowa Juvenile Detention Center 

Notes to Other Information – Pension Liability 

Year ended June 30, 2019 

23 

Changes of benefit terms: 

Legislation enacted in 2010 modified benefit terms for Regular members.  The definition of final 
average salary changed from the highest three to the highest five years of covered wages.  The 
vesting requirement changed from four years of service to seven years.  The early retirement 
reduction increased from 3% per year measured from the member’s first unreduced retirement 
age to a 6% reduction for each year of retirement before age 65. 

Changes of assumptions: 

The 2018 valuation implemented the following refinements as a result of a demographic 
assumption study dated June 28, 2018: 

• Changed mortality assumptions to the RP-2014 mortality tables with mortality 
improvements modeled using Scale MP-2017. 

• Adjusted retirement rates. 
• Lowered disability rates. 
• Adjusted the probability of a vested Regular member electing to receive a deferred 

benefit. 
• Adjusted the merit component of the salary increase assumption. 

The 2017 valuation implemented the following refinements as a result of an experience study 
dated March 24, 2017: 

• Decreased the inflation assumption from 3.00% to 2.60%. 
• Decreased the assumed rate of interest on member accounts from 3.75% to 3.50% 

per year. 
• Decreased the discount rate from 7.50% to 7.00%. 
• Decreased the wage growth assumption from 4.00% to 3.25%. 
• Decreased the payroll growth assumption from 4.00% to 3.25%. 

The 2014 valuation implemented the following refinements as a result of a quadrennial experience 
study:   

• Decreased the inflation assumption from 3.25% to 3.00%. 
• Decreased the assumed rate of interest on member accounts from 4.00% to 3.75% 

per year. 
• Adjusted male mortality rates for retirees in the Regular membership group. 
• Moved from an open 30-year amortization period to a closed 30-year amortization 

period for the UAL (unfunded actuarial liability) beginning June 30, 2014.  Each year 
thereafter, changes in the UAL from plan experience will be amortized on a separate 
closed 20-year period. 

The 2010 valuation implemented the following refinements as a result of a quadrennial experience 
study: 

• Adjusted retiree mortality assumptions. 
• Modified retirement rates to reflect fewer retirements. 
• Lowered disability rates at most ages. 
• Lowered employment termination rates. 
• Generally increased the probability of terminating members receiving a deferred 

retirement benefit. 
• Modified salary increase assumptions based on various service duration. 

 



 

OFFICE OF AUDITOR OF STATE  
STATE OF IOWA 

State Capitol Building 
Des Moines, Iowa 50319-0004 

Telephone (515) 281-5834      Facsimile (515) 281-6518 

Rob Sand 
Auditor of State 

 

 

24 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control 
over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters 

Based on an Audit of Financial Statement Performed in Accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards 

To the Members of the Central Iowa Juvenile Detention Center: 

We have audited in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by 
the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statement of the Central Iowa Juvenile 
Detention Center as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related Notes to Financial 
Statement, and have issued our report thereon dated March 15, 2020.  Our report expressed an 
unmodified opinion on the financial statement which was prepared on the basis of cash receipts 
and disbursements, a basis of accounting other than U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statement, we considered the Central Iowa 
Juvenile Detention Center’s internal control over financial reporting to determine the audit 
procedures appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the 
financial statement, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Central Iowa Juvenile Detention Center’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Central Iowa Juvenile Detention Center’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility a material misstatement of the Center’s financial statement will not be prevented or 
detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control which is less severe than a material weakness, yet important 
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, 
material weaknesses may exist which have not been identified.  

 



 

25 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Central Iowa Juvenile Detention 
Center’s financial statement is free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, non-compliance with 
which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement 
amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our 
tests disclosed no instances of non-compliance or other matters that are required to be reported 
under Government Auditing Standards.  However, we noted certain immaterial instances of non-
compliance or other matters which are described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings. 

Comments involving statutory and other legal matters about the Center’s operations for the year 
ended June 30, 2019 are based exclusively on knowledge obtained from procedures performed 
during our audit of the financial statement of the Center.  Since our audit was based on tests and 
samples, not all transactions that might have had an impact on the comments were necessarily 
audited.  The comments involving statutory and other legal matters are not intended to constitute 
legal interpretations of those statutes.   

The Central Iowa Juvenile Detention Center’s Responses to the Findings 

The Central Iowa Juvenile Detention Center’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are 
described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings.  The Central Iowa Juvenile Detention 
Center’s responses were not subjected to the auditing procedures applies in the audit of the 
financial statement and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Center’s internal control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Center’s internal control and 
compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

We would like to acknowledge the many courtesies and assistance extended to us by personnel of 
the Central Iowa Juvenile Detention Center during the course of our audit.  Should you have any 
questions concerning any of the above matters, we shall be pleased to discuss them with you at 
your convenience.  

 
 
 

  Marlys K. Gaston, CPA 
  Deputy Auditor of State 

March 15, 2020 



Central Iowa Juvenile Detention Center 

Schedule of Findings 

June 30, 2019 

26 

Findings Related to the Financial Statement: 

INTERNAL CONTROL DEFICIENCY: 

No material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting were noted. 

INSTANCE OF NON-COMPLIANCE: 

No matters were noted. 



Central Iowa Juvenile Detention Center 

Schedule of Findings 

June 30, 2019 

27 

Other Findings Related to Required Statutory Reporting: 

(1) Questionable Disbursements – No disbursements we believe may not meet the 
requirements of public purpose as defined in an Attorney General’s opinion dated 
April 25, 1979 were noted. 

(2) Travel Expense – No disbursements of Center money for travel expenses of spouses of 
Center officials or employees were noted. 

(3) Center Minutes – No transactions were found that we believe should have been approved 
in the Center minutes but were not.  However, for 1 of 6 meetings during the fiscal year, 
the Center did not submit a summary of proceedings for publication within 20 days after 
the meeting. 

Recommendation – The summary of proceedings should be submitted for publication 
within 20 days following adjournment of the meeting as required by Chapter 28E.6(3) of 
the Code of Iowa. 

Response – The Center has made some internal changes to rectify this. 

Conclusion – Response accepted. 

(4) Deposits and Investments – No instances of non-compliance with the deposit and 
investment provisions of Chapters 12B and 12C of the Code of Iowa and the Center’s 
investment policy were noted. 



Central Iowa Juvenile Detention Center 

Staff 

28 

This audit was performed by: 

Marlys K. Gaston, CPA, Deputy 
Tammy A. Hollingsworth, CIA, Manager 
Taran E. McCusker, Staff Auditor 
Nathan A. DeWit, Assistant Auditor  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 























































































































































Fireworks Permit Application

Applicant Name Tony Keller

Address 34829 270th St

City Eldora

State IA

Zip Code 50627

Phone Number

Email Address

Name of organization 
applying for permit to 
explode fireworks:

Union Betterment

Name of person or 
organization that shall be 
the operator or operators 
of exploding the fireworks:

Tony Keller, Junior Prusha

List previous experience of 
the operator or operators in
exploding the fireworks:

Tony Keller: assisted Dan Hauser with numerous firework 

displays including 4th of July, union tar heel days, and whitten

days. 

Has the operator or 
operators had any training 
in exploding fireworks?

No

If so, what has this 
consisted of?

Field not completed.

Date(s) on which the 
fireworks display shall take 
place:

August 1,, 2020

Location at which the 
fireworks shall be exploded:

South Hardin Recreation (hole 9 tee block)

City Union

State Iowa



Zip Code 50258

Will any emergency medical
treatment be available at 
the location of where the 
fireworks will be displayed?

Yes

If so, what will this consist 
of?

Junior Prusha- Union EMT

Will any fire protection be 
available at the location of 
the fireworks display?

Yes

If so, what will this consist 
of?

Water sprayer near by as well as Union Fire Department will be

present.

Will you notify your local 
fire department regarding 
the date, time, and location 
of the fireworks display?

Yes

Will any search be 
conducted after the 
fireworks display for 
unexploded fireworks?

Yes

Will people be restricted 
from the area until the 
search is completed?

Yes

Will the location where the 
fireworks display is 
conducted be wetted down 
after the fireworks display?

Yes

Will the operator and the 
permitee be covered by 
insurance for their 
fireworks display?

Yes

Iowa Code Section
Iowa Code Section 331.304(9) and Section 727.2, allow fireworks permits but (1) 
only upon an application made in writing; (2) only to municipalities, fair 
associations, amusement parks, and other organizations or groups of individuals 
approved by the County Board of Supervisors; (3) and only when the fireworks 
display will be handled by a competent operator.



These two statutes do not allow a County Board of Supervisors to issue a permit to 
an individual person.

If your area is under burn ban on the planned date of your fireworks display, this 
permit is void.

Applicant Signature Tony Keller

Date 6/29/2020

(Section Break)

Submit Completed Application
Submit applications by United States Postal Service to:
Hardin County Board of Supervisors
1215 Edgington Avenue, Suite 1
Eldora, IA 50627

Submit completed application by fax to:
Fax: 641-939-8223

Submit completed application by email to:
Angela Silvey, asilvey@hardincountyia.gov

Email not displaying correctly? View it in your browser.

mailto:asilvey@hardincountyia.gov
http://www.hardincountyia.gov/Admin/FormCenter/Submissions/Edit?id=1326&categoryID=0&formID=56&displayType=%20SubmissionsView&startDate=%20&endDate=%20&dateRange=%20Last30Days&searchKeyword=%20&currentPage=%200&sortFieldID=%200&sortAscending=%20False&selectedFields=%20&parameters=%20CivicPlus.Entities.Core.ModuleParameter&submissionDataDisplayType=0&backURL=%2fAdmin%2fFormCenter%2fSubmissions%2fIndex%2f56%3fcategoryID%3d11





	Page 1

		2020-06-26T07:53:47-0700
	Agreement certified by Adobe Sign


	Ttl2: 
	Ttl1: 
	N1: 
	N2: 
	Sig2: 
	Sig1: 
	PON: 
	Cmpy: 
	PurchaseOrder: 
	Cmpy2: 
	Dte1: 
	Dte2: 
	PO: []


